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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Company Profile

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) is a leading operator in providing integrated facilities
of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and logistic services in south
China for petroleum, liquid chemicals and gases products, offering
value-added services in its own ports and storage tank farms (the
“terminal storage business”) and trading of oil and petrochemical
products (the “trading business”).

Before 28 May 2019, the Group owned and operated two main
liquid product terminals, namely Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT")
carried out by Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage &
Transportation Ltd. (“GD (Panyu)”) and Dongzhou International
Terminal (“DZIT") carried out by Dongguan Dongzhou International
Petrochemcial Storage Limited (“DZ International”). Following the
completion of very substantial disposal of GD (Panyu) on 28 May
2019 (the “Disposal”), the Group ceased to have any interest in
GD (Panyu). During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised a gain on the Disposal of approximately HK$1.31 billion.

Adequate cash position provides an opportunity for the Group’s
business development. On 5 November 2019, the Group entered
into the equity transfer agreement with an independent third party
in respect of the acquisition of 99% equity interest in Shanghai
Diyou Industry Co., Ltd. (“SHDY"), being a company which operates
in the wholesale of refined oil products and holds a refined oil
wholesale operating licence (“Licence”) issued by the Ministry of
Commerce of the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") (the
“Acquisition”). The Directors consider that the Acquisition will
enable the Group to expedite the development of its refined oil
wholesale and trading business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group’s strategy is to extend its principal business from the
terminal storage business to the oil and petrochemical products
wholesale and trading business and then further expand into retail
business market. With the Group's first filling station in Zengcheng,
Guangzhou was built and is expected to commence its operations
in 2020 (the “retail business”), the Group’s business chain will be
extended from midstream to downstream. It is expected to expand
the Group's business segments into three principal activities: oil and
petrochemical products wholesale and trading, terminal storage as
well as filling station retail business and strengthen the position of
the Group in the oil and gas industry in the PRC.

Details of the Acquisition and the Disposal are stated under the
paragraph headed “Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions
and Disposals and Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets” in this section.

Liquid Product Terminal

DZIT is situated in Lisha Island, Humen Harbour district, Shatian
county, Dongguan city, Guangdong province. The Terminal was
built with berths ranging from 500 to 100,000 dwt. The tank farm
has a site area of approximately 516,000 square metres and is
installed with 94 oil and chemical tanks of a total storage capacity
of approximately 260,000 cubic metres, out of which 180,000 cubic
metres are specialized for gasoline, diesel and similar petroleum
products commonly available in trading and consumption markets.
Storage tanks with capacity of 80,000 cubic metres were built for
petrochemical products.

Strategic Locations

The liquid product terminal of the Group is located in the Greater
Bay Area. As Guangdong province is the pioneer in economic
development of China and our terminal situates in the centre of
the economic circle of the province, such location edge attracts
customers to engage with our terminals for their distribution of
refined oils. Apart from oil products customers, there are customers
who have manufacturing plants in the Greater Bay Area. In their
business cycle, there are requirements to temporarily store their
dangerous, poisonous and hazardous goods in designated controlled
facilities with proper licences in accordance with governmental
regulations for safety and environment reasons. The customers may
store their hazardous raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods in our storage facilities. Our terminal employs experienced,
professional and skillful management teams with well-equipped
features storage hardware. The Group persistently maintains high
standards in safety and environment protection. Our terminal is
fully and properly licensed to handle wide range of dangerous
and hazardous goods. They provide convenience to our customers
to move their products in and out of the terminal during their
production cycle.
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Revenue

The terminal earns storage income by leasing their storage tanks to
customers based on the storage tank size engaged. Apart from this,
they collect handling charges when providing services in moving
cargoes in and out from the terminal for customers, either by water
in the jetties or by road from the loading stations. Furthermore,
the terminal provides ancillary services such as tank cleaning, waste
treatment and blending to customers and earn respective fees for
the services rendered.

Key Performance Indicators

The leaseout rates and cargo throughput are the major key
performance indicators of the terminal. Higher leaseout rate should
return with higher storage income. More cargoes flows mean more
works in the terminals thus more handling fee income.

The lease-out rates and cargo throughput of DZIT during the last
two years are as follows:

Operational statistics
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Liquid product terminal and transshipment REEREBE R E&RE
services

Number of vessels visited HEEEY
—foreign =4t

— domestic — 7

Number of trucks served to pick up cargoes BlEmr EEEH

Number of drums filled EREE
Transshipment volume (metric ton) EtoE{ON )
-l —Am

~ petrochemicals —AiLm

Terminal throughput (metric ton) EEATE(AR)
- port jetty throughput -EEALE
~loading station throughput —REAANLE
Storage services B RS

Leaseout rate — oil and chemical products (%)
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158 79 +100.0

567 652 -13.0
59,113 61,122 -3.3
13,297 3,389 +292.4
64,971 - N/ATiE A
129,275 5134 +2,418.0
3,591,000 3,214,000 +11.7
2,084,000 1,788,000 +16.6
1,507,000 1,426,000 +5.7
91.2 89.0 +2.2 points2h
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, DZIT achieved a growth
in its major operating indicators. Following the disposal of GD
(Panyu), certain premium customers in GD (Panyu) relocated all or
most of their loading and storage services from XHIT to DZIT. Such
relocation in return drove the transshipment volume and terminal
throughput during the year. Number of foreign vessels visited and
number of drums filled achieved a significant increase by 100.0%
and 292.4% respectively as compared to last year. At the beginning
of year 2019, DZIT renovated some of its storage tanks so that the
customers from XHIT could lease the storage tanks at DZIT, and thus
those storage tanks were vacant for a short period but the average
leaseout rate of storage tanks still remained as 91% throughout
the year. The Group will continue to identify market potential and
expand its oil and chemical storage volume by initiating construction
of DZIT Phase II.

Trading Business

Operational statistics
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Upon the completion of the Acquisition of SHDY on 10 December
2019, based on the unified guidance and requirements of the
Group, it continued to expand customer base and business scale
based on steady development of business. In December 2019, in
addition to continuing to develop business with existing customers,
SHDY also further developed relationship with high quality new
customers. From the completion of the Acquisition to 31 December
2019, SHDY entered into a total of six sales contracts with total sale
volumes of 26,400 metric ton.
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SEGMENT REVENUE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has two
reportable segment revenue from DZIT and SHDY. The breakdown is
as follows:

2 HBA
BHE-_ZT-NWF+-A=+—HLFE"
AEBEHRAMERERMAICER LB
RERIERE D BWA » BRARDHTAN T

SHDY DzIT Total
LR FNELE h
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-0E INF “E-NE EN\E “2-hF INF
HK$'000 HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK§'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TEr Thr %  TiEn Th ThER % AL %
Storage income FHERA = = - - 118233 778 108909 770 118233 375 108909 770
Transshipmentand ~ E#REf
other handling RBERA
fee income - - - 3208 211 30881 218 32086 102 30881 218
Port income AW - - - 46 11 1766 12 176 06 1766 12
Sales of oil and HEBRR
petrochemical RltER
products 162,790 1000 - - - - - - 162790 517 - -
162,790  100.0 - - 152,055 100.0 14155 1000 314,845 1000 141,55  100.0

During the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue from the
provision of terminal, storage and transshipment activities for
liquid products in DZIT was approximately HK$152.1 million which
increased by 7.4% over the last year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase of the storage and transshipment income
as a result of the relocation of certain GDPY's customers in all or
most of their loading and storage services from XHIT to DZIT and
recognition of the storage income of approximately HK$8.9 million
after the legal case against customer A was concluded during the
year (see note 16 to the financial statements). Besides, the Group
recorded revenue from the trading of oil and petrochemical products
of approximately HK$162.8 million since the completion of the
Acquisition of SHDY to 31 December 2019.
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OUTLOOK

Currently, international oil prices have fluctuated sharply. Crude oil
prices have fallen substantially by 30%. Coupled with the epidemic
outbreak of the novel coronaviruses disease (COVID-19), the
global economy has been affected to some extent. However, the
Group is a leading operator in China’s energy industry, the impact
of the epidemic is relatively mild on the Group’s business. With
the successive work resumption in the countries/regions affected
by the outbreak, economic activities are expected to pick up
quickly following the downturn. The Group will seize carefully the
opportunity to continue its business expansion plan.

In 2020, the Group will continue to promote its diversified
business strategy. On the one hand, we will seize the opportunity
of developing polypropylene industry and light hydrocarbon
comprehensive utilisation industry in the petrochemical industry
area where DZIT is located, and through this cooperation, we can
maximize the potential resources of DZIT, optimize and expand
the traditional port jetty and oil terminal. On the other hand, we
will comprehensively promote domestic and international trade in
petrochemical industry, and vigorously develop the filling station
retail business.

Terminal Storage Business

DZIT is situated in Lisha Island, Humen Harbour district, Shatian
county, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, where a project of
1.2 million tons of propane dehydrogenation is under development.
In future, a fine chemical industry park will be built, which will
mainly focus on propylene polymers, the comprehensive utilisation
of light hydrocarbon and the development and utilisation of
hydrogen energy. According to the plan, it is necessary to build
LNG/LPG storage tanks of more than 1 million cubic meters capacity
in Lisha Island, as well as supporting facilities such as loading and
unloading, gasification and gas transmission pipes. This provides
DZIT with a great opportunity to expand its business. Based on the
two existing jetties of DZIT, with the birthing capacities of 80,000
dwt and 50,000 dwt respectively, and nearly the reserved land
of 150,000 square meters near the terminals, the Group plans to
take various forms, such as investment, joint venture cooperation
and asset restructuring, to participate in the overall planning and
construction of the chemical and industrial areas. On the one hand,
the Group can convert its unutilised land into operating assets and
increase the income and profit of the Group; on the other hand,
by constructing and rebuilding existing terminals through LNG/LPG
storage tanks and improving the loading and unloading functions of
LNG, the Group builds a more sustainable and long-term future for
its development.
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Trading Business

At the end of 2019, the Group successfully acquired SHDY, which
holds a refined oil wholesale operating licence issued by the Ministry
of Commerce of the PRC and is a qualified supplier of various state-
owned enterprises including Sinopec, PetroChina, CNOOC and
SINOCHEM Group. According to the Group’s business plan, trade
volume and amount are anticipated to have a significant increase
in 2020 as compared to last year. In addition to domestic trading
business, the Group will extensively explore international trade. In
order to establish a trade team as soon as possible, in early 2020, the
Group invested 70% in the formation of a newly set up subsidiary
named Hans & Chuen Hing Energy Company Limited with Chuen
Hing Petroleum & Chemicals (H.K.) Company Limited (“Chuen Hing
Company”), which is an independent third party for international
trade of petrochemical business including crude oil. Chuen Hing
Company has been engaged in international trade of petroleum and
chemicals for years with extensive experience in international trade
and an excellent business team. The establishment and operation
of such subsidiary will propel the international trade business of the
Group towards the right direction and accelerate its development.

Filling Station Retail Business

After years of preparation and construction, the Group’s first filling
station has been completed and will soon be put into operation. The
filling station is in Guangzhou City, with its floor area, fuel island
configuration, equipment level and construction standards all meet
the standards of local flagship filling stations. The amount of petrol
filled per annum is expected to reach 10 thousand tons. Currently,
filling stations in China are premium assets with high returns. In
the future, the Group will accelerate its efforts in retail business
expansion, identifying high quality filling stations in mainland China,
especially in the Pearl River Delta region, and establish a chain of
filling stations under the brand of “Hans” through acquisition,
leasing and franchising. Meanwhile, the Group is also seeking
worldwide opportunities for investment and acquisition of superior
filling station assets and businesses in economically developed
countries and regions. The Group is expected to develop the filling
station retail business as one of its pillar businesses in the future.

In conclusion, through asset swap, the Group has gradually
transformed its monotonic business structure in the midstream and
downstream chain of petrochemical industry, proactively participated
in the three major business segments, including petroleum and
petrochemical wholesale trade, storage transportation and retail
sale (filling station), and opened up diversified development models.
The management believes that at the end of 2020, each business
segment of the Group will bring satisfactory results.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial
performance are set out as bellows:

B ERE
HE-Z-NEF+-A=+—HLFE -
AEEOHMBRARTIT -

Continuing operations: BEQEEY

Revenue WA

Gross profit EF

Loss before interest and tax bR EFIRIEE

Depreciation and amortisation WE R

Finance costs BT AR

(Loss)/earnings before interest, tax, BB BHE MER
depreciation and amortisation a1 (518),/ BF
("LBITDA/EBITDA") ([LBITDAVEBITDA])

Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%)

Net loss margin (%) FIEER(%)

Group: FEH :

Gain on disposal of discontinued HER HEEER 2 am
operations

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity AR RIREREEEF]
shareholders of the Company (E18)

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share  FAGEAR L #EER],/
(HK cents) (E518) (Bl

Revenue and gross profit margin

During the year, the Group’s revenue from continuing operations
was approximately HK$314.8 million (2018: HK$141.6 million),
representing an increase of 122.4% over the last year. The gross
profit from continuing operations was approximately HK$41.9
million (2018: HK$33.6 million), increased by 24.6% over the last
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the commencement of
oil and petrochemical products trading business by the Group and
recognition of the storage income of approximately HK$8.9 million
after the legal case against customer A was concluded during the
year (see note 16 to the financial statements). However, the gross
profit margin reduced by 10.4 percentage points from 23.7%
to 13.3% on a yearly basis as the gross profit margin of oil and
petrochemical products trading business diluted the overall gross
profit margin of the terminal storage business.
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Loss before interest and tax for the year

During the year, loss before interest and tax from continuing
operations was approximately HK$77.9 million (2018: HK$49.9
million), representing an increase of 56.1% over the prior
year. After excluding the reversal of impairment losses of trade
receivables of HK$35.5 million (2018: provision for impairment
losses of trade receivables of HK$38.4 million) (see note 5(c) to the
financial statements), the increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in administrative expenses during the year. The increase
of administrative expenses was mainly attributable to the increase
of (i) special bonus to Directors in relation to the completion
of the Disposal of approximately HK$87.6 million, (ii) legal and
other professional fee by approximately HK$22.0 million and (iii)
advisory fee in relation to the subscription of limited partnership
by approximately HK$3.1 million. As a result of the increase of loss
from continuing operations for the year, the Group recorded LBITDA
of HK$9.1 million (2018: EBITDA of HK$16.1 million) but net loss
margin improved to 41.7% (2018: 69.7%) during the year due to
the increase of revenue.

Finance costs

During the year, finance costs from continuing operations amounted
to HK$49.9 million (2018: HK$39.6 million) which were mainly
incurred on the Group’s outstanding bank loans.

Taxation

The Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong profits tax purposes for
the year. The applicable tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was 25% (2018: 25%).

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has completed
the disposal of GD (Panyu) and recognised a gain of approximately
HK$1.31 billion. Details are set out under the paragraph headed
“Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposals and
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets”.

Basic and diluted earnings per share of the Group

The Group's basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2019 were 29.70 Hong Kong cents (2018: basic and
diluted loss per share of 1.67 Hong Kong cents).
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LIQUIDITY, GEARING AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$975 million (2018:
HK$881 million). Most of the funds were held in HK$, RMB and
Us$.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$2,074 million (2018: HK$1,955 million) and
net current assets of approximately HK$1,000 million (2018: net
current liabilities of HK$78 million). The current ratio as at 31
December 2019 of the Group increased to 4.36 (2018: 0.94). The
improvement was mainly attributable to the cash consideration from
the completion of the Disposal of approximately HK$1.63 billion
received by the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of HK$702 million (2018: HK$880 million). The
total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$954 million (2018: total deficit of HK$84 million).
The gearing ratio (defined as total liabilities to total assets) as at 31
December 2019 significantly reduced to 54.0% (2018: 104.3%).
It indicated that we have obviously improved our existing financial
position and substantially reduced the degree of leverage of the
Group.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group met its
working capital requirement principally from its business operation
and financed with facilities provided by bank. Together with the
proceeds received from disposal of GD (Panyu), we are confident
that the Group should have adequate financial resources to meet its
future debt repayment and support its working capital and future
expansion requirements. Due attention will be paid to the capital
and debt markets as well as the latest developments of the Group in
order to ensure the efficient use of financial resources.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

0]

Completion of Very Substantial Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
completed a very substantial disposal in relation to the
disposal of the entire equity interest in GD (Panyu) which
carried out the liquid product terminals of XHIT.

On 22 August 2018, Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company
Limited (“GD Petro-Chemicals”) (indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), Good Ocean Enterprises Limited
and Guangdong Lian Ying Petro Chemicals Company Limited
(both are the joint venture partners of GD Petro-Chemicals
in GD (Panyu) (collectively named as the “Sellers”) and a
third party of Guangzhou Gas Group Company Limited
(the "Purchaser”) have entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
in relation to the disposal of the entire equity interest in GD
(Panyu) (the “Transaction”) at a consideration of RMB1.56
billion (equivalent to HK$1.77 billion). The Transaction was
completed on 28 May 2019, on which date all the conditions
for the Transaction have been satisfied pursuant to the Sale
and Purchase Agreement and the control of GD (Panyu) was
transferred to the Purchaser.

Upon completion of the Transaction, the Company ceases
to have any interest in GD (Panyu). As a result of the
Transaction, the Group recognised a gain of approximately
HK$1.31 billion during the year ended 31 December
2019. The Company believes that the Transaction will
effectively reduce the Group's financial risks and improve the
Group's liquidity that will lay a new foundation for future
development.

Further details of the Transaction are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 August 2018,
14 September 2018, 19 September 2018, 8 October 2018,
30 November 2018 and 28 May 2019 respectively and the
circular of the Company dated 19 September 2018.
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(i) Subscription of Limited Partnership Interest

(iii)

16

On 26 March 2019, Creative Apex International Holding
Limited (“Creative Apex”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the subscription agreement
(the “Subscription Agreement”) with by one single general
partner (the “General Partner”), pursuant to which Creative
Apex agreed to subscribe for the limited partnership interest
in the limited partnership (the “Limited Partnership”) with a
maximum capital commitment of US$20 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$156 million). During the year, the
Group made an advisory fee of approximately HK$3.1
million for the Limited Partnership. The Limited Partnership
will consider actively, among other things, investment in
the energy sector which is in line with the Group’s business.
The Directors believe that the subscription represents a
good investment opportunity for the Group to diversify the
Group's investment portfolio and generate stable income
and return for the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the subscription for the limited
partnership interest in the Limited Partnership has not
been completed and it has not been made any investment.
Details of this subscription are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 12 April 2019 and 17 May 2019.

Acquisition of Equity Interest in SHDY

On 5 November 2019, Guangzhou Hans Energy Investment
Ltd. (“GZ Hans"), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the equity transfer agreement
with Guangzhou Daying Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (the
“Vendor”), an independent third party, pursuant to which
GZ Hans has agreed to purchase, and the Vendor has agreed
to sell, 99% equity interest in SHDY (representing all equity
interest held by the Vendor in SHDY) for a consideration of
RMB10,265,334.97 (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was
completed on 10 December 2019, on which date the control
of SHDY was transferred to GZ Hans.

(ii)

(iii)
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The Directors believe that the Acquisition will not only
help the sourcing and supply of refined oil products for
the Group’s self-operated filling stations, but also allow
the Group to develop refined oil products trading with oil
refineries and provide refined oil products wholesale and
distribution services for other filling stations in the PRC,
directly by using Licence of SHDY. Thus, the Acquisition can
create a synergistic effect within the Group.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, SHDY becomes
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Details of this Acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 November 2019 and 27 November
2019.

Other than the disclosed above, there was no other significant
investments, nor there was no any other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year. The Group did not have any future plans
for materials investments nor addition of capital assets during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
PRICES AND RELATED HEDGE

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in
HK$, RMB and US$. Operating outgoings incurred by the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB, which usually
receives revenue in RMB as well. Management considers that the
Group exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates are not significant.
Prices of oil products are affected by a wide range of global and
domestic factors which are beyond the control of the Group. The
fluctuations in such prices may have favourable or unfavourable
impacts on the Group. However, the Group mainly operated on
a back-to-back sale and purchase model to avoid the risk of oil
price fluctuations. Accordingly, management is in the opinion that
the Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate and price risks are
not significant, and hedging by means of derivative instruments is
considered unnecessary.

Save for the above disclosed, there was no other significant risks of
exchange rates and price during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of approximately
230 employees (2018: 462), 210 (2018: 448) of which worked
for the terminals. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practices and individual performance and experience. On
top of the basic remuneration, discretionary award or bonus (in cash
or other forms in kind) as may be determined by the Board may be
granted to selected employees by reference to the Group’s as well
as individual’s performances. Every year, the Group devises a budget
which states total salary and bonus plan for the year to encourage
the Group’s employees to contribute their best efforts and to make
maximum economic benefits to the Group. In accordance with the
relevant government regulations in the PRC, the Group is required
to cover social insurance, including but not limited to retirement,
medical, workman compensation and unemployment insurance as
well as housing fund for every qualified employee in the PRC. With
these insurance policies and staff benefits, the Group hopes to
provide a reasonable welfare for each qualified employee.

CHARGE ON GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group has provided the lender with certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and interests in leasehold land held
for own use as collaterals for the banking facilities granted. Details
are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Details of commitments are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 60, has been the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company since July 2002. He has many years of
experience in China business particularly in the provision trading of
petroleum products and petrochemicals, properties investments and
developments in China.

Mr. Yang Dong, aged 59, has been an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since July 2016. Mr.
Yang joined the Company in 2012. Prior to that, he held various
senior key positions in the subsidiaries of China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation such as the deputy general manager in
China Petrochemical International Co. Ltd. and deputy chairman
and executive director in Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 934), the securities of which is listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Besides, he
has extensive experience in international trade of petroleum and
chemical commodities. Mr. Yang graduated from Beijing Normal
University with a degree in Economics. He also holds a Master’s
degree in Project Management from University of Management and
Technology.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 52, has been an executive Director of the
Company since April 2006. Ms. Liu currently holds as the financial
controller, PRC of the Company, the deputy chairlady and financial
controller of GD Petro-Chemicals and the deputy chairlady of DZ
International. She joined GDPC in 1997. Prior to that, she had
worked in various government departments and large State-owned
enterprises, including the Audit Office of Guangdong Province,
China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited, etc. She has
more than 25 years of experience in financial management. Ms. Liu
graduated from Sun Yat-sen University in 1989 with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics. Ms. Liu also holds the auditor qualification
certificate of speciality and technology issued by the Ministry of
Personnel and National Audit Office of the PRC.
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Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 54, has been an executive Director of the
Company since August 2007. Mr. Zhang joined the Company
as Chief Operating Officer, PRC in 2006. He has many years
of experience in petrochemical industry. He has expertise in
petrochemical specialized technology and is familiar with financial
accounting policy and system of the PRC. Mr. Zhang also has in-
depth knowledge in large petrochemical project management. He
had served China Petrochemical Corporation and held various key
positions such as the chief financial officer of the Singapore branch,
deputy general manager and chief financial officer of the Hong
Kong branch. Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics and obtained the qualification of engineer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 63, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since July 2002. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
and holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from The
University of East Asia. He is also a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li had worked for Henderson Land
Development Company Limited. He is currently a non-executive
director of Guangdong Investment Limited (stock code: 270), an
independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(stock code: 604), China South City Holdings Limited (stock code:
1668) and Centenary United Holdings Limited (stock code: 1959)
since 16 September 2019, the securities of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Besides, Mr. Li has resigned as a chief financial
officer of GDH Limited and Guangdong Holdings Limited and an
executive director and company secretary of Guangdong Land
Holdings Limited (stock code: 124), the securities of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange, with effect from 31 December 2019 and 20
February 2020 respectively. Apart from the abovementioned, Mr.
Li is the standing committee member of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Guangdong Provincial Committee.
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Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 48, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since May 2005. He is also
the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and owns a certified
public accounting practice. He has extensive experience in general
assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as
well as corporate finance. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan
is now the independent non-executive director of Honbridge
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8137) and Wai Chun Mining Industry
Group Company Limited (stock code: 660) and the joint company
secretary of Zhejiang Canguan Instrument Group Company Limited
(stock code: 1743), the securities of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Apart from the abovementioned, he has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Wai Chun Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1013) since 17 December 2019, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Woo King Hang, aged 58, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 28 June 2019. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Woo has extensive experience in
financial and business management. He worked for Bamboos Health
Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 2293) as an executive director
from 16 May 2019 to 5 July 2019. Mr. Woo had also worked for Hip
Hing Construction Company Limited and NWS Service Management
Limited, both are the wholly owned subsidiaries of NWS Holdings
Limited (stock code: 659). He was a Project Controller of NWS
Service Management Limited from January 2019 to April 2019 and
served as a financial controller from February 2006 to June 2010
and an executive director from July 2010 to December 2018 in Hip
Hing Construction Company Limited. Mr. Woo is a fellow member
of the Institute of the Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Master’s
degree of Business Administration from Kellogg Graduate School
of Management, Northwestern University and the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology; a Bachelor’'s degree of Laws
from Peking University; and a Master’s degree of Laws from the City
University of Hong Kong. Apart from the abovementioned, Mr. Woo
is a member of the panel of assessors and the Health Committee
of the Medical Council of Hong Kong, the Chiropractors Council,
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the Chinese Medicine Practitioners Board of the Chinese Medicine
Council of Hong Kong and the disciplinary committee of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a council
member of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra and the vice chairman
of the Hong Kong PHAB Association.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 51, is the director and chairman of
DZ International. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Li has
extensive knowledge and experience in technology and operating
management of oil and petrochemicals storage. He also holds a
Master’s degree of corporate management from Liaoning Shihua
University (formerly named as #EJIE/A 58 £ 655).

Mr. Huang Bo Heng, aged 43, is the general manager of DZ
International. He graduated from Guangdong Petroleum School
(BEAMER) in 1997 and joined GD (Panyu) in the same year.
Mr. Huang has solid knowledge and many years of experience in
technology, construction project and operating management of
oil and petrochemicals storage. He is now fully responsible for the
production and safety of DZIT.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 46, is the director and deputy general
manager of DZ International. Mr. Deng obtained a Master’'s degree
in Business Administration from University of San Francisco. He
joined GD (Panyu) in 1996. He has many years of experience
in trading and marketing in the business of storage for oil and
petrochemical products.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 48, is the deputy general manager of DZ
International. Mr. Han graduated from Heilongjiang Institute of
Commerce, where he majored in oil storage and transportation
operation. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Han has many years of
experience in business operation and import and export customs of
cargoes.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 63, is the chairman and general manager
of SHDY. Before joining GD (Panyu) in 1993, Mr. Cui was the
deputy general manager of the sales department of FA{LEEA
7). He has been engaged in the sales of petroleum products for a
long time and has extensive experience in the sales and marketing
management of petroleum products.
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Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 52, is the director and financial controller
of DZ International. He joined GD (Panyu) in 2006. Mr. Nie is an
International Certified Internal Auditor, a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certificate Public Accountants and has professional
accountant qualification in PRC. He has over 15 years financial
management experiences in large state owned enterprises, and has
worked as a senior project manager in a renowned accounting firm.

Mr. Choy Chak Wa, Peter, aged 62, has been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since September 2017. Mr. Choy graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and holds a Master’s
degree in Management from Imperial College London. He is
a fellow member of The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Choy
has held numerous executive positions across a wide spectrum of
industries including manufacturing, university education, non-profits
organisation, garment, audio-visual equipment trading, as well as
civil engineering consultancy company. Prior to joining the Company,
he held as a regional controller in Fugro Holdings (HK) Limited. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial management in
both Hong Kong and across the Greater China Region.

On top of his professional career, Mr. Choy was awarded the Bronze
Medal by The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants to
recognise his outstanding contribution. He is currently a member of
the HKSAR Inland Revenue Department Users” Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie, aged 44, has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since February 2017. Ms. Lam joined the
Company in 2008 and is currently the financial controller of the
Company. Graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy, she is also a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Lam
has extensive experience in accounting and financial management
for the listed companies in Hong Kong and Singapore and had
worked in numerous reputable international accounting firms.
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The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business in compliance with the principles and code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The board of Directors
(the "Board”) is of the view that throughout the year, the Company
has complied with the CG Code except for the deviations from Code
Provisions A.4.1 (before 22 January 2019) and E.1.2 and which
deviations are explained in the relevant part of this annual report.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and
plans with a view to enhance shareholder interests while the day-to-
day operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the chief executive and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprised seven members,
including four executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman and Member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")
Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and Member of Nomination Committee)
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Woo King Hang (Member of Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)
(appointed on 28 June 2019)
Ms. Hai Hiu Chu (Member of Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)
(resigned on 28 June 2019)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one INED
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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INEDs

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all INEDs make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
INED in respect of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed his independence and concluded that all INEDs are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, the non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. On 22 January
2019, each of the INEDs entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years from their date of appointment.
The Company has complied with the Code Provision A.4.1 since 22
January 2019.

Pursuant to the Company’s memorandum and article of association,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the Company’s general meeting and any Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Reading material on relevant topics will be issued to
Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision
A.6.5 on Directors’ training. During the year, all Directors attended
seminars and training sessions arranged by various professional
institutes and bodies. In addition, relevant reading materials
including the updates on the business, operations, corporate
governance, legal and regulatory matters have been provided to all
Directors for their reference and studying.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Nineteen Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other
electronic means of communication) record of each Director
at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:
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Executive Directors HITEF
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BEL) 5/5 0/0 171 22 0/0
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the INEDs without the presence of executive Directors
during the year pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.7.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position
of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the senior executives whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s memorandum and articles
of association also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Company Secretary

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie is the Company Secretary. According to
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2019. The biographic of Ms. Lam is set out in the section headed
"Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
on 29 August 2013.

All Board appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates for Board
membership will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of such policy.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven
Directors. One of them are female, three of them are INEDs, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process.

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
21 December 2018. According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding
whether to propose any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia:

e the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

e  shareholders’ interests;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

e the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and financial covenants to which the Group is subject;
e possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

e any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

e the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

e liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend;
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e  taxation considerations;
e statutory and regulatory restrictions;
e general business conditions and strategies;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no
way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company complies with the Code Provision A.2.1, the positions
of the Chairman and CEO are segregated and are held by Mr.
David An and Mr. Yang Dong respectively. These positions have
clearly defined separate responsibilities. Mr. David An will focus
on the overall strategic planning and business development of the
Group, whereas Mr. Yang Dong will be responsible for the overall
management, administrative functions and day-to-day business
operations of the Group.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

All the three INEDs are the members of the Nomination Committee
and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessment of the independence of the
INEDs.

The Nomination Committee will reference to the Board nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) adopted by the Group on 21
December 2018 for selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration
to criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how, sufficient
time to effectively carry out their duties, their services on other listed
and non-listed companies should be limited to reasonable numbers,
qualifications including accomplishment and experience in the relevant
industries the Company’s business is involved in, independence,
reputation for integrity, potential contributions that the individual(s)
can bring to the Board and commitment to enhance and maximize
shareholders’ value.
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Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of a Director in accordance with the following
procedures and process:

(a

32

By giving due consideration to the current composition and size
of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills, perspectives and
experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

To consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying or
selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing
directors, advertising, recommendations from an independent
agency firm and proposals from shareholders of the Company
with due consideration given to the criteria;

To adopt any process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference checks;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

To make the recommendation to the Board in relation to
the proposed appointment and the proposed remuneration
package;

The Board will have the final authority on determining the
selection of nominees;

In order to be eligible to be elected as Director at any general
meeting, the candidate should be recommended by the Board;
or a notice in writing by a member of the Company given
his intention to propose such candidate, and also a notice in
writing by the candidate of his willingness to be elected; and

In the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors by giving
due consideration to the overall contribution and service to
the Company of the retiring Directors including his attendance
of Board meetings and, where applicable, general meetings,
and the level of participation and performance on the Board;
and whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the
criteria, thereafter recommend retiring Director(s) to the Board
for re-appointment. The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the general
meeting.
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The Nomination Committee met twice during the year ended
31 December 2019 to (i) ensure that the Board has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet the requirements
of the business of the Company; (ii) review and recommend the re-
appointment of Directors standing for re-election at the Company’s
2019 annual general meeting; and (iii) identify individuals suitably
qualified to become board members and make recommendations to
the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and all three INEDs are the members of
the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Li Wai Keung is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages and the remuneration policy and structure
for all individual Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman and/or the CEO
of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy, structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee convened five meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2019 to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior executives during the year ended
31 December 2019.

—E-NEFH EBRFRERAE

REE_FT-—NF+_A=+—BLF
B REZESARTMAZE  A()E
RESSHENG - Heek&HIE - B
EARRNEEBRE (DR REEEFE
ERARF ZE—NFREBFRE L&
BEAZEE: R(INVDEEAERAERD
ALTRAEEEHKE  WHESSELH
BER -

FMEES
BEEeIRAEB=RBEIIIFNTEER
HHEZEENE  MFEBRLERFHE
BexE-

FINEZEEeZIBRR  BRBHNMAE
MEZERSREEABZFHMETE - FE
BEREE YAEESHEHHEBEER
VAR WS EARE FE - DA TE B B BN B R
KRG - EREE F T AIBE A
SERER2EAGTH - ERAFME2E
BARARRRIRIRA R HHEH MR E
5o

ANERHBEEREREEANERH
B AFMEESFLHEESRAME
B HMEE AT RRHMER R
BLEFMNGBZERER  SAARRAE
B/ SRR ER -

Yz EeEBE_T-NF+ A
ST-HALEFERITTARER R
HITEERERTBRABRBE-_ZE—A
FHZA=+—HLEFENFMEFERMA
SESFHEERR -

33



Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all three INEDs (all of them possess
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise) and Mr. Li Wai Keung is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditors.

(c) To review the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems.

(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control measures, including the functions of
account and financial reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the
Group’s human resources, staff qualifications and experiences,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.

(e) To review arrangements by which employees of the Company
may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice if considers necessary.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2019 to (i) review audited annual financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and unaudited interim
financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2019; (ii) review
financial reporting, risk management and internal control and
compliance procedures; and (jii) review the scope of work and make
recommendations on the appointment of the auditors.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
and disclosure in this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the Model Code and
there was no event of non-compliance throughout the year ended
31 December 2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 78 to 86.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2019 was set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Responsibility

The Company has maintained an internal control system and
its implementation has been considered effective by the Audit
Committee and the Board. In addition, the Audit Committee has
communicated with external auditors of the Company to understand
if there is any material control deficiency. Nevertheless, the Company
will review the need for an internal audit function on an annual
basis.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system and has overall
responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate and
effective risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Company and
reviewing its effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Group’s risk management framework adapts an integrated
bottom-up and top-down risk review process. The top-down risk
review process covers overseeing, identification, assessment and
mitigation of risk at corporate level while the bottom-up risk review
process covers identification, assessment and mitigation of risk
at business unit level and across functional areas. The integrated
risk review process is to enable comprehensive identification and
prioritization of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation
of material risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue
among the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.
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The Group's internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
is established. The internal control framework also provides for
identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and
monitoring the system of internal control and for providing assurance
to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its own view on
effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on the information
and assurances provided to it.

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review
and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The management of the Company reviews all significant control
policies and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the
Board and Audit Committee.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Controls Effectiveness
During the year under review, the Group has performed the risk
management and internal control review of the Group. The Board
and the Audit Committee have reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's system of internal controls on all major operations and
considered the Group’s internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance, thereby minimizing risks and allowing
the Group’s business objectives to be achieved optimally. The Board
and the Audit Committee considered that the risk management and
internal control system was operating effectively during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of shareholders, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.
All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’ meetings are voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. The poll results are also posted on
the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Company immediately after the relevant shareholders’ meetings.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders
Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event that the Company ceases to have such a principal
place of business, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionists
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law
for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer
to the procedures posted on the Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Unit 2608, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Email: info@hansenergy.com.hk

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has set out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to compile
with Code Provision C.2.4(e).

There are guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant
employees of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements.
It also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information.

Key procedures include:

e define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board and Company Secretary to enable them
to assess inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;

e controls the access to inside information by employees on a
need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of
the inside information before it is properly disclosed to public;

e procedures of communicating with the Group's stakeholders,
including shareholders, investors, analysts, etc. in ways which
are in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Group has also established and implemented procedures to
handle enquiries from external parties related to the market rumours
and other Group's affairs.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and the Company’s
website.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The shareholders’ meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, all INEDs, and the chairmen of all
Board committees (or their delegates) and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available at the general meetings
to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Chairman of the Board and some of the Directors were unable
to attend the last annual general meeting held on 31 May 2019
due to business engagement. They will use their best endeavour to
attend all future shareholders’ meetings of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association. The Company places great
emphasis to enhance communications and relationships with its
investors as the Company’s policy to maintain timely and effective
communications with their shareholders. This is crucial aspect of
good corporate governance, and part of the statutory and regulatory
regime. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with existing shareholders and potential institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Save for the trading business commenced during the year, there
were no other significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group’s business are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from page
4 1o 18 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page from 87 to
88.

Taking into account of the cash requirement for the repayment of
bank loan of the Group, business development and the Dividend
Policy of the Company as set out in the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” on page 29 and 30, the Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from
reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set
out on the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note
25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution represented the share premium and accumulated losses
(net of treasury shares held under share award scheme) which in
aggregate amounted to HK$602 million (2018: HK$139 million).
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 208. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of property, plant and equipment during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details in movement in share capital of the Company during the
year, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Wai Keung
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony
Mr. Woo King Hang
(appointed on 28 June 2019)
Ms. Hai Hiu Chu
(resigned on 28 June 2019)

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, Mr. David An and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony shall
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 99 of the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association, Mr. Woo King Hang shall hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer
himself for re-election.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of Directors who have served in the board of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year end and up to the date of this annual
report is kept at the Company’s registered office and is available
for inspection by the members of the Company during the business
hours.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND APPOINTMENT
LETTERS

On 22 January 2019, each of the INEDs entered into an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years from their date
of appointment, which can be terminated by either party giving
not less than one month notice in writing to the other party. Each
of the INEDs is subject to the provisions for retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association. The term of office of each
of the INEDs is the period up to his retirement as required by the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, no Directors are considered to have interests, either
directly or indirectly, in a business which competes or is likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout
this year. In addition, the Company has taken out and kept in force
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and their associates or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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the issued share capital of

Number of shares the Company
BERAEBITREZ
R & E BHOESL

Long Short Long Short

Name of Director ~ Capacity positions positions positions positions

g g4 3} KR 3} KR

Mr. David An Founder of a discretionary trust 2,548,203,980 Nl 68.27% Nil£E
BERE EREFARA (Note ff7:%)

Beneficial owner 218,390,000 \[[E:3 5.85% Nil 4

BB A

Note: Mr. David An (“Mr. An") was taken to be interested in those shares by
virtue of being a founder of a discretionary trust. Those shares are held
directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise Investments Ltd
("Extreme Wise") and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals
(BVI) Company Ltd (“Vand Petro-Chemicals”). Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer Family Office & Trust Ltd. (“Julius Baer")
which is a trustee of the discretionary trust. By virtue of SFO, Mr. An is
deemed to be interested in the 2,548,203,980 shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which are required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company”, “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme”, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2019 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debts securities (including debentures) of
the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses or
children under the age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiary, or
holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director had a
material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisting at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as
connected and related party transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company had received from each of the INEDs the annual
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to the rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all INEDs are
independent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, shareholders (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed to
have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

BMFHTES 2B MER
ARBCEHESBIIIFRTESRELT
MAFEIBGRBEL CFEBIUERAER
ARARBEEBUIFRTESTHRBL
At

DREA
ARTLEERRRFERAAER

KEBWME |ZHA -

FERRAARQBARAP 2 EHERKAE

BE-Z-NAF+-A=+—H BRE
NRAEFRTIBTBABRINRARAIR
0 AR REEET - BEREES
BERIEES LB IRPIEXVERE2 %37
MERMARBRE 2 EIAR » HEL
BN AR BIRIRE 75 & B E 1561 5 336 1%
REFEZECMAZEEIORBIAT

RABERMEE0.10B T ZEBER

Approximate percentage to
the issued share capital of
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Mr. An B4 2,766,593,980 Nil % 74.12% Nil £
Julius Baer 2,548,203,980 Nil % 68.27% Nl
Vand Petro-Chemicals 2,338,430,000 Nil 4 62.65% Nil &
Extreme Wise 209,773,980 Nil 4% 5.62% Nil 8

Note: The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr.
An personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals. Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer which is the trustee of a trust and Mr.
An is a founder of a discretionary trust. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. An
is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr. An is a
Director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Apart from the “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme”
of the Company as disclosed below, no equity-linked agreement
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 28 December 2012,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) in place of the old share option scheme. The summary of
the Share Option Scheme is stated as follows:

1.  Purpose:
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such
persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group.

2. Participants:

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may at their
discretion grant options to any eligible participant including
any employee, Director, consultant, advisor, agent, business
affiliate, business partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner, or any supplier or provider of goods or services to
the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company as may be
determined by the Directors from time to time to subscribe for
the shares of the Company (the “shares”).
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Total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and percentage of issued share
capital at the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme:

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 373,263,800
shares, being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
on the date of adopting the Share Option Scheme. The limit
may be refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must
not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. However, total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

On 30 August 2018, the Board granted the share options to
the Company’s Directors and senior management to subscribe
for a total of 127,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
The exercise price of each option is HK$0.236 per share. The
options are exercisable from 30 August 2019 to 29 August
2028. At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 31 May 2019, the shareholders of the Company passed an
ordinary resolution to amend the terms of the options granted
(the “Amendments”) in order to better serve the purpose of
the Share Option Scheme. Details of the Amendments are set
out in the circular dated 26 April 2019.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme were
373,263,800 shares (including options for 122,500,000 shares
that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised), being
10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders
of the Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules. Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors in excess of issued share
capital of the Company or with a value in excess of HK$5
million must be approved in advance by the shareholders of the
Company.

REBBERET BT HRTHROAE
RitEBRETEE RS BITREN
B :

PR R BB NG AT 2 T RE I ) 2 B AR A
ZRMERSEE A373,263,8000% -
EARRBRRMNBERETEZEREE
BORAZI0% c Z LRATBERE
;o OEFRBAEBBARRR
fRERARE FHE S BEBITIRAZ
10% ° AT + RIBERET I RARA
AIMEREMFSIEREERMRITEZ
EERITIE BRI TER - AT T3
TZBRHBRETSBRBEIFERITR
{ﬁ2300/o °©

RZE—NFENA=+H EF<
MARREERBRERERLE
BEHE - ARREES ££127,500,000 B% A
DREER -BHEREZITERE
BER0236BTT - BIRETR_Z
—hWFENA=Z+BEZ_ZE-_NFNA
ZHNBETE - RARRERITHE
AB_E-hERA=+—HHKRFEA
FRELE ARFIREBBEIHLE
REBRRLMERT R H BRI ([1E
F11) - AB AT TTREAR AR B o 18
FIRE—THBENARAZT N
FA -+ NHRBK -

RAFHRAH - RIBERETE A
#2317 2 f% {5 48 #X & 373,263,800
f& (B IEE B BB MR KRB TER
122,500,000 gt ) - (EAR R AEE
BITRAZ210% ©

E2RENKSRE -

A PMEAA =8 A B R T E A {E R
AT ZBRRERS R 2B &= E A
PEHBAARRRZ T @A HRE &
B—RZBEITERMDZ1% © RIS
R - AR RIE AR R R IR BEE A E
Aim e NMEERRIBILIFAITE
EROBBANRCETRALEE
HBB5008 B T2 BIKE - BEASR
RN BIBRALAE ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



EERE

The periods within which the shares must be taken up
under an option:

Subject to the Share Option Scheme, the share options may
be exercised at any time during the exercise period. All options
granted prior to such termination and not then exercised
shall continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as
may be determined by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments of calls
must or may be made or loans for such purpose must be
paid:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, provided that
it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the date of the grant of the share options; (ii) the average
closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The remaining life:

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period of
10 years from adoption of such scheme and expires on 27
December 2022.
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Details of the movements of the share options during the year

ended 31 December 2019 are set as below:

BE_ZT-NFT_A=1t—"HILFEHE
PREZ B FFIBRTIAT

Outstanding During the year Outstanding
Date of Exercise Exercise  at1January i at 31 December
Eligible person grant period price 2019 Forfeited Lapsed 2019
RZF-NE RZE-hE
—-A-8 tZR=t-A
AERAL RS iz i RATTE ERY BXH RATTE
HK$
BT
Executive Directors #iiEs

Mr. Yang Dong Bk 30/8/2018 30/8/2019 - 29/8/2028 0236 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
Ms. Liu Zhijun YFERL 30/8/2018 30/8/2019 - 29/8/2028 0.236 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 30/82018 30/8/2019 - 29/8/2028 023 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000

INEDs BUFYTEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung ERLE 30/8/2018 30/8/2019 - 29/8/2028 0.236 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony  FiRERAE 30/8/2018 30/8/2019 - 29/8/2028 0.236 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Ms. Hai Hiu Chu ZEGIT 30/8/2018 30/8/2019 - 29/8/2028 0.236 3,000,000 - (3,000,000 -

(resigned on (R=Z-nF

28 June 2019) AAZT\ARHE)

65,000,000 - (3,000,000) 62,000,000
Employees & 30/8/2018 30/8/2019 - 29/8/2028 023 62,500,000 (2,000,000) - 60,500,000

127500000 (2,000,000 (3,000,000) 122,500,000

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no share option
was granted to or exercised by any of the Directors and senior
management. During the year, a total of 5,000,000 options were
lapsed and forfeited. As at 31 December 2019, the number of
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
122,500,000 (31 December 2018: 127,500,000).
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Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 15 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). The
summary of the Share Award Scheme is stated as follows:

1. Purpose:
The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to retain participants
and to encourage them to make contributions to the growth
and development of the Group.

2. Participants:
Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme (the “Scheme
Rules”), the Board may grant an award to anyone (other than
any excluded participant) who is an employee, Director, or
consultant of any member of the Group.

3. Administration:

The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of
the Board in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The Board has
a discretion to determine the terms of the award. The Board
may engage one or more trustees in the process of granting,
administrating and/or vesting any awards, and the Board may
at its discretion delegate such powers and/or functions relating
to the administration of the Share Award Scheme to the trustee
as the Board thinks fit.

4. Duration:
The Share Award Scheme will terminate on the 10th anniversary
of the Adoption Date or such earlier date as the Board may
determine.

5.  Maximum limits:
The number of shares which may be held by the trust at any
one time (taken together with all unvested awarded shares
granted under the Scheme Rules) shall not be more than 5% of
total numbers of issued shares (i.e. 186,631,900 shares) at the
date of grant.

6. Operation:

The Board may, from time to time remit funds to the trustee
for the purposes of the Share Award Scheme, and such money
will form part of the trust fund. The Board may instruct the
trustee to purchase the number of shares underlying the award
from the open market (either on-market or off-market) and the
trustee shall hold such shares on trust for the participants until
they are vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.
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7. \Vesting:
The Board has a discretion to determine the terms of the
award, including the grantor of the award, the number of
shares subject to the award, the vesting conditions, the date
when the award will vest, and whether the award will carry
rights to dividends paid between the date of the award and the
vesting date.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company remitted
in total of HK$20,000,000 to the trustee for the purchase of shares
of the Company pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. On 15 April
2019, the trustee purchased a total number of 58,590,000 shares on
the market at a total consideration of approximately HK$16,581,000
for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme. As at the reporting
date, no grant of awards has been made under the Share Award
Scheme. Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 15 April 2019 and 16
April 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the percentage of the
aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
comprised approximately 55.6% of the Group’s total turnover and
the percentage of the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer were approximately 14.3% of the Group’s total turnover.
The percentage of the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group'’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately 80.2% of
the Group's total purchases and the percentage of the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were approximately
18.8% of the Group's total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholder which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had banking facilities which
were secured by certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment and interests in land held for own use under operating
leases. Details of Group’s bank loans during the year are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the emolument policy for the employees of the Group as
at 31 December 2019 are set out in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report on page 18.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All the Directors represented the senior management of the
Company. Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the listing rules are set out in notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements, respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Details of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 December
2019 are set out in note 23 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company's listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

During the year ended 31 December 2019, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2019, there were no material contingent
liabilities in respect of outstanding litigation or legal proceedings
that need to be disclosed.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Safety and Environment

Since the products handled by terminals are hazardous, safety and
environment protection measures and equipment are regarded
as the most vital and critical importance to the success of the
Group. The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability
of the environment and communities in which it operates. As a
responsible corporation, to the best knowledge of the Directors of
the Company, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection during the year
ended 31 December 2019. For the financial risk management,
please refer to the note 27 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable
rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of the Directors of
the Company, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Company has not changed its external
auditor in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Yang Dong

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”), together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is pleased to present this Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an
overview of the Group’s management on significant issues affecting
the operation, and the performance of the Group in terms of
environmental and social aspects.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the
rules governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and has
complied with “comply or explain” provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of
corporate social responsibility, covering its operating activities which
are considered as material by the Group — provision of terminal and
storage facilities and services for liquid petrochemical products in
South China. On 28 May 2019, the Group completed the disposal
of a subsidiary, Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage &
Transportation Ltd. (28 (&8 )Al{t THEEMZE AR A F]). Hence,
this subsidiary is not included in the ESG reporting scope in 2019.
With the aim to optimise and improve the disclosure requirements
in the Report, the Group has taken initiative to formulate policies,
record relevant data as well as implement and monitor measures.

Reporting Period
This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Contact Information

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for
our sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email to
info@hansenergy.com.hk.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is a leading midstream player in providing integrated
facilities of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and logistic services
in South China for petroleum, liquid chemicals and gases products,
offering value-added services in its own ports and storage tank
farms. To maintain a competitive edge, it is crucial that the Company
stays healthy and fits for the future. Our long-term success depends
on our efforts in managing the environmental and social risks.

The Group stores energy and chemical products that are important
in people’s daily life, yet can endanger their health and the
environment if stored or handled inappropriately. As a service
provider, our role and responsibility are to provide safe, efficient
and clean chemical storage and handling services. The Group
abides by existing rules and regulations as a minimum and adopts
best practices whenever possible. The Group also aims to achieve
sustainable development in our daily operation by maximising
operational safety, by minimising our environmental impact, by
training and developing our people as well as sharing best practices,
and by both encouraging and maintaining an open dialog with our
stakeholders as a responsible member of the communities in which
we operate.

The Group strives for excellence to make the right choices
to serve the long-term interests of all our stakeholders, from
customers, business partners and shareholders, to employees, local
communities and society at large. The Group also endeavours to be
an environmental-friendly enterprise and to fulfil its responsibilities
for the environment, whilst maintaining its position as a leading
operator in the provision of terminal and storage facilities and
services for liquid petrochemical products in South China.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested
or will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the
outcomes within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by
or have the potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s
activities, products, services and relationships. It allows the Group
to understand risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship
with each of its key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained
from the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest
in the Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key
stakeholders that are important to our business and established
various channels for communication. The following table provides an
overview of the Group'’s key stakeholders, and various platforms and
methods of communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels

BEA BEEE 2RRE

Government and Market regulator —  Compliance —  On-site inspections

B RSB E R

Promote regional economic
development and
employment

Bl
R R AR L

Research and discussion
through work conferences,
work reports preparation and
submission for approval
Annual and interim reports,
announcements

BhiR a2
FRTIESHRPT KRR
BHERIER TEmEAHE
#

FHREA RS  AE

Shareholders and Investors

Return on the investment

Information transparency

Protection of interests and
fair treatment

Annual general meeting and
other shareholder meetings
Annual and interim reports,
announcements

RERRIREE RE B R BREFAE RAMBIRE
BEABERE i3
R AT HRE FERPHRE - AF
Employees Employee rights and interests Conference
Working environment Training, seminars, briefing
Health and safety sessions
Career development Cultural and sport activities
opportunities Intranet and emails
{=1=] B BN M iEn e
TERIR B wEE - e
RERLZE e R EBRIES
BETREE B AE & EE
Customers Safe and high-quality service Website, brochures, annual
Stable relationship reports
Information protection and Email and customer service
privacy hotline
Business ethics Feedback forms
Regular meeting
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Stakeholders Issues of concern

Engagement channels

A

BEEE

SRRE

Suppliers —  Long-term partnership - Business meetings, supplier
—  Honest cooperation conferences, phone calls,
—  Fair, open interviews
- Information resources sharing —  Review and assessment
—  Risk reduction —  Tendering process
HrEm - RHERHBER - Xiegw fHEmegs ¥
- WEAE EREE N
- AFAH - ERRFHE
- BlXREE - HEER
- AR

Peer/Industry associations —  Experience sharing

—  Industry conference

—  Cooperation —  Site visit
—  Fair competition
GV L) - RBBN=E - 11%Eg3
- Atk - EMER
- ATEF
Community —  Community involvement —  Charity and social projects
—  Social responsibilities
Zan - HtE2H - REERMRIER
- HE&EE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed
decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group have adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are important
to the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key
performance indicators (KPIs) are reported in the Report according
to recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules) and the GRI Guidelines.

The Group have evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the following steps:
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Step 1: Identification - Industry Benchmarking

Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based on
the importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritization — Stakeholder Engagement

The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects to be covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2019, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.
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A1.

—T-NEFR

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Based on ISO14001, the standard of management system for
environment, the Group has established a set of management
systems regarding environmental protection, including but
not limited to “Atmosphere Pollution Management System”,
“Waste Management System” and “Wastewater Management
System”. The Group’s objectives on environmental protection
are to eliminate and reduce the impact of its operation on the
ecological environment and endeavours to save resources and
protect the environment. The Group is in strict compliance with
the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, and had no
material non-compliance regarding environmental issues during
the reporting period.

EMISSIONS

Air Pollutant Emission

Emission control is essential for mitigating the impact on
the environment and protecting the health of employees.
The Group’s emission complies with “Emission Limits of
Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001)" (KESZ¥HEMRE) and
“Emission Standard of Air Pollutant for Bulk Gasoline Terminal
(GB 20950-2007)" ({#)i/E AR5 R HERIRAE). The increase
in air pollutants emission in 2019 was mainly attributable to the
more frequent staff transportation to working locations during
the year. The air pollutants emission during the reporting
period is as follows:

Air Pollutants

KRS

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) REALV(NO,)
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) ZE{EFR(SO,)
Particulate matter (PM) FF R T (PM)

ERRRARQA

A1.

REBEM@

RIKISO14001 GRIBFEERBRITE) -
AEBEEY —ERREEES B
FEETRRIARRSREERSAS]
[EEMERBRFIRISKERER
Fl o REBAMIRREZRER LR
RELBHERRRNFE  WHED
MHERRIRERE - AEBRKE
SR EARLNBERERELRH
HABRE AR ROER - RIS BRI 4
ERRBEEENEATAR

B

KRS
THBERCENRE EIRIE R E RIRE
EERFEZHEEE - AEENERY
BEITRR SRR E(DBA4/27-
2001) J R [ R EE R &5 W HE Uz
#E(GB 20950-2007) | » —E— 4
ARSAMENELNEZARFR
BT TEME AT SAZ o R
SHR AR RIS A BB RN T

kgT 3% 5,128.48 4,431.77

kgT 5% 48.37 77.16

kgT 5 535.93 444.60
61



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRE

As most of the products stored are highly volatile, the
Group has implemented “VOCs One Enterprise One Policy
Comprehensive Improvement Program” (VOCs —{b—RAR & B
YA 77 28) to control volatile organic compounds (VOCs) emission
from source and production processes. Key measures to
mitigate the leakage of the volatile chemicals are implemented
as follows:

e  External floating roof tanks' are used to store gasoline,
diesel and other volatile chemical products.

e Nitrogen blanketing? is used in the tanks to ensure stored
product is separated from the air, vapour generated in the
tank is collected and treated with activated carbon.

. To reduce the non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC)
emission, oil-gas condensation recovery devices are
installed to achieve a recycling rate of 98%.

e All the volatile organic compounds (e.g. pentane, acetone)
are stored in specific containers and sealed properly to
avoid leakage.

Apart from measures adopted to reduce VOCs, the Group
lowers the emission of SOz by using low-sulfur diesel (National
V standard) for the boiler.

External floating roof tanks (¥JEX 77 ) are storage tanks
commonly used to store large quantities of petroleum products. They
eliminate breathing losses and greatly reduce the evaporative loss of
the stored liquid.

Nitrogen blanketing (¥ 2 &) is widely used in many industries
to prevent fires, explosion, degradation of products during their
production, storage and transportation.

HRATPETEREIIETAZIE
% REBEEM VOCs— B —RER
AEAFR] WERBEREEBRER
5 ZEEERICEYI(VOCS)HITER °
BIESER B R RNERERED
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o ERFRAFFETE S
Som Rk E Mt BEECEm -

o AMmMEFEMAAHEER? HEKF
TRERREZRBE  WERM
R B P B A )RR U R DAV M BR B
# -

o ARAIEREMEILA YR
LZEMARBOWES - EE
98% Bl K o

s FESZEBEAMEEY (WX
bt~ RER) Br FE R ERT Fas )2
HETDHARRRR

FRERBUBIE ZIE R B RL A WA TEIE
S - ZREREIE BT SRIE (K AR 54 0m
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Greenhouse Gas ("GHG") Emission3

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The
Group manages the carbon footprint by minimising the energy
consumption and water consumptions as these activities cause
significant emission of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures
adopted on resources saving are mentioned in the section “Use
of resources”. The decrease in the total GHG emission in 2019
was mainly due to the disposal of a subsidiary in Panyu during
the reporting period. Moreover, with a sense of promoting the
use of clean energy and green environment, the Group has
switched its fuel consumption to fossil fuel with lower carbon
content such as Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG").

The GHG emission during the reporting period is as follows:

BERB(DRERE N

M AR RIREE - REBE D
BUIROHFE K K LAE IR 2 ED -
REZEEDEHAEBHMAERE -
PrER M B IRES R R FFHR [ B
REMR]—f - —T—NFRERRE
PEE SRS ER ARG BT
g F'EEH_LE"%%ZWJ% G4 N
R RRERAE A R E IR
%5 $$@Eﬂ%ﬁk%*4/ﬁﬁ$qﬁ/1ﬂt
BHR(TLPG ) FEFR AR -

RBEMEREREBHERNB M

BN
GHG Emission
mE RS
Scope 14 &[4 tonnes of CO,-e 369.26 365.12
Z&bhiRE =R
Scope 25 #[E2s tonnes of COs-e 2,342.32 6,558.75
Za bl E =W
Total a5t tonnes of CO,-e 2,711.58 6,923.87
Za e 2N
GHG emission intensity BERBEHEMERE  tonnes of CO-e/ 1.29 1.73
thousand tonnes of
terminal throughput
ZE(eiE EMEER
A= THE
3 The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on 3 OREREBHMRECRAEREZE
the “Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from BRI PEREEBETE]|G
Greenhouse Gas Protocol. o
4 Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or 4 EEN  AERBEESEHINRER
controlled by the Group. BEHEL -
5 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity and LPG 5 #HE2  AEEREST ) MBEELPG

BRI BEAR -

consumed by the Group.
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Wastes generated are handled with a comprehensive procedure
to mitigate the impact to the environment. The Group has a
strict classification system for different types of wastes. Each
type of waste has specific storage location and collection
procedures. There is a precaution implemented for the leakage
of waste to present pollution.

Hazardous wastes such as hazardous wastewater, waste oil
cleaning rag and organic solvents are handled according to
the latest policies of “National Hazardous Waste Inventory”.
These wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger
for record. The Group engages qualified recycling companies
to perform waste disposal and treatment so as to minimise
the impact on the nature. The decrease in the amount of
wastes generated in 2019 was mainly due to the disposal of a
subsidiary in Panyu during the reporting period. The Group has
put effort on waste-free initiatives in reducing waste, reflecting
from the decrease in the amount and intensity of wastes
generated during the year.

The wastes generated by the Group during the reporting
period are as follows:

Waste Disposal

BEREERRY

PEE A RE W) 3B 2 AR Fr B2 32 DAY
BEREZE - AREUTRERY
BAREABROBERE - SHEEREY
BRENGFRIEMREREF - 28
BEEMSRERBHEEAL LS

BEREWM(WAEZEK  BEEEM
I R BERAREDRBE(BEKERERY
B BNBREIE - ZFEEY
B friF RER D BELRRIE - JAE
it - ARBZEAEREKAREA
AREEMRENEIE - RESE AR
VWE - T NFELEREVRE
WA EBRRBNERE HE G E M
RERZKBEAR - FRELHER
Y& K E S TP S R 7 SR R A g
BYNZTEEMEDNE S -

MRS HIR A S A A R B R
T

BEEVERE

Hazardous wastes EERBEEREY  tonnes 53.97 174.28
generated M43

Hazardous wastes EENBE tonnes/thousand 0.026 0.043
generated intensity FEEMEE tonnes of terminal

throughput
Mg,/ B [ A & R

Non-hazardous wastes EERBEEREREY  tonnes 6.78 38.50
generated M43

Non-hazardous wastes EERBEEREREY)  tonnes/employee 0.03 0.09
generated intensity nE ==

Non-hazardous wastes BN H)EEREREY)  tonnes 0.03 7.20
recycled M8

Non-hazardous wastes B EEREEY)  tonnes/employee 0.0001 0.0409
recycled intensity =E W, 1E 8
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The Group has launched waste recycling and implemented
different measures to reduce the wastes generated in the
office. For example, used paper and plastic materials are
collected in the office for recycling purpose. Waste electrical
and electronic equipment is separately collected. With these
measures, the Group hopes to ease the pressure on landfill
space and bring benefits to the environment.

Wastewater

The terminal and warehouse areas are equipped with drainage
system to collect wastewater. Impermeable layers are applied
to all pipes and treatment facilities to avoid leakage of
wastewater. Rainwater and wastewater are collected by two
separate systems to prevent pollution to groundwater.

The Group also cooperated with the Environment Faculty of
South China University of Technology (33 T A2 I81E
E2B7) to develop a sewage treatment facility, which treats
wastewater with microorganisms. During this year, around
20,003.50 m3 (2018: 23,548.59 m3) of wastewater was
discharged and treated. After the treatment, the water which
meets satisfactory quality standard, is used in fire services and
planting. Not only the emission of wastewater to land and
water bodies is reduced, but also the water can be reused to
save the water resource. This system is simple and the cost
of maintenance and operation is low. Therefore, it is widely
admired and accepted by government departments and peers.

Noise

Noise is mainly generated from the operations of blower of
boilers, pumps and compressors, etc. Appropriate acoustic
insulation is applied to those machines. Regular maintenance
is also conducted as to reduce the noise generated due to
wearing of the components in those machines.

—E-NEFH EBRFRERAE
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A2. USE OF RESOURCES

66

The Group has adopted policies and guidelines to improve the
efficiency in energy, water and other material consumption,
including “Energy Saving Management System”.

Energy

The energy consumption of the Group mainly comes from fossil
fuels and electricity. The Group promotes the idea of “green
office” to reduce the electricity consumption as follows:

e  The temperature in the office is set at 26 Degree Celsius
in summer.

e No heating is supplied in winter according to the
characteristic of weather in South China.

e All electronic appliances have to be switched off when
leaving the office.

e After all staff leave the office, security guards double
check the electronic appliances and ensure all of them are
switched off.

The Group also checks the oil usage frequently to minimise
the chances of oil leakage which lead to energy wastage. The
decrease in total energy consumption in 2019 was mainly
attributable to the disposal of a subsidiary in Panyu during the
reporting period.

A2.

ERER

IR B RABUR R 5 Sl R T BETR
KR EM YR ERES w BRI
BEEIEAS] -
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AEFEERBFEEZRBIAME R
B AEEKEIGERHAE | H
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REHE - sERBRBRIT

During the reporting period, the energy consumptions are as
follows:

Energy Type

BEIR

Purchased electricity HBEE kWh in '000s 3,479.46 6,956.55
FEF R

Purchased steam BEAR kWh in '000s = 4,720.47
T T FL B

Petrol VA kWh in ‘000s 284.18 367.64
TFHEF Fis

Diesel LE°h kWh in '‘000s 1,158.01 960.91
FEF R

LPG BAL AR kWh in '000s 109.14 109.14
T T FL B

Total energy RRHERE kWh in ‘000s 5,030.79 13,114.71

consumption TET R
Energy consumption R ERERE kWh in ‘000s/thousand 2.40 3.27
intensity tonnes of terminal
throughput
FEFRE BE
el
Water 7K

Water is another important resource used for the daily
operation. In order to monitor the usage of water, meters
are installed in different locations and water consumption is
recorded regularly. Staff are responsible for managing the
water usage and checking the water system. If leakage of
water pipe happens, repair will be immediately carried out to
reduce the wastage of water resource.

In the workplace, the water pressure is adjusted according
to the actual water usage. To encourage water-saving, water
usage of each staff in the staff quarter is recorded and the staff
has to pay water bills by themselves. The decrease in water
consumption in 2019 was mainly due to the disposal of a
subsidiary in Panyu during the reporting period.

—E-NEFH EBRFRERAE

KEARAEZENS—ERER -
REFERKE  KESETRMH L
£ THREAKE - ETAEER
RKEBEKRESL ° WKEZELER
o SEIESEITARE - LURDKEIR
HIRE

THESMOKEREBEERAKER
B - REEEORAK LB TH
MERETMAK  BTABTXN
KE o —T-NFNRERRD T ER
BRBEMELENBARES -
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The water consumption during the reporting period is as
follow:

REREHRACERNERET

Water consumption KBFEE Usage (in m3) 95,443.00  136,847.50
RAE(GLEAK)
Water consumption TOEREZE m3/thousand tonnes of 45.58 34.13
intensity terminal throughput
MK ER
Falig =l
Nitrogen a

Nitrogen is an important resource for facilitating the storage of
highly volatile substances. It provides a protective layer of gas
on the substances, which is named as blanketing. The process
is controlled automatically instead of manually to avoid wastes.
The usage of nitrogen is monitored to ensure there is no
leakage.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group's terminal is near to the waterbody with high
biodiversity and rich fisheries resources. Based on the Group’s
internal policies, efforts have been made to minimise the
impact of activities on the environment. For example, two sets
of oil spill monitoring and alerting system have been installed in
the water body near the terminal. The system is able to detect
oil spill accidents occurred when the oil tanker is berthing or
oil products are loaded. The situation of the terminal is also
monitored by staff under 24-hour real-time video surveillance
system. If oil spill accidents are detected, the signal from the
alarm system can reach the responsible staff and prompt
remedies can be carried out to reduce the impact on the
environment.

To strength the pollution control, the Group has cooperated
with a company specialised for handling oil spill accidents to
equip adequate facilities (e.g. oil boom) to prevent the spread
of oil leakage in the sea.

A3.
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B1.

—T-NEFR

SOCIAL ASPECTS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group highly considers employees as important assets and is
committed to improve in these four areas: employment, health
and safety, development and training and labour standard.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with
the aim to provide good and safe working environment to
its staff in order to comply with “Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”. It sets out the Group’s standards
for staff recruitment, promotion guidelines, remuneration scale,
holiday and statutory paid leaves, parental leaves and working
hours. All employees are treated equally and their employment,
remuneration and promotion opportunities will not be affected
by their nationality, race, age, religion and marital status.

The Group also advocates harmonious and work-life balance
culture among the employees through organising diversified
activities, including annual dinner, annual gathering, sport
days and birthday parties, etc. These activities can help the
employees to relax and enhance communications among them.
During the reporting period, no concluded cases (2018: nil)
regarding employment were brought against the issuer or its
employees.

EERFEERAT

B1.

HEEmE
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As at 31 December 2019, the employee compositions (in
percentage of employees) by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region were as follows:

41-50 30 or
23% below
Age Group 308k
) Sy PN
RF R A
37%
31-40
32%
Middle
management
hRERE
7%
Senior
management
eRERE
4% .
/ =y B General Female
y o ﬁr&
Contract Employment 88% 44%
hort-t %
shortierm ZERE
G H
1%
Contract/
short-term

By
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RERRN
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The employee turnover rate during the year by gender, age
group and geographical region are as follows:

Employee turnover rate

BRI~ FicER RitEE D HER
MARLLERIT

BEMALLE

By gender BB

Male S %
Female egid %
By age group REHRER

Age 30 or below 30BREIA T %
Age 31-40 31-40%% %
Age 41-50 41-5073% %
Age 51 or above 515%30A F %
By geographical region EihE

Hong Kong BE %
The PRC e %
Overall et %

B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY

Upholding the belief that safety is the first priority, the Group
is committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace for all
its employees and the community. The Group has established
“Health, Safety and Environment Policy Statement” in
accordance with the requirement of “Occupational Health
and Safety Management System” (OHSAS 18001). The Group
continues to improve the working conditions and monitor the
effectiveness of safety related controls. The Group complies
with related health and safety laws and regulations such as
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases”, “Production Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, “Provisions on the Supervision
and Administration of Occupational Health at Work Sites”, etc.
In 2019, 1 concluded case (2018: 1 case) regarding health and
safety were brought against the issuer or its employees.

—E-NEFH EBRFRERAE
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Care to Employees

Every employee is required to have a medical check annually.
Employees are provided with safety training and personal
protective equipment (helmet, goggles, masks, etc.) in the
workplace. Occupation hazards assessment is conducted
by third party regularly to monitor the performance on
occupational safety.

The Group is committed to providing all employees with a
warm and comfortable working and living environment. The
Group has set up self-managed staff quarters and canteens
with a view to providing sound rest space and healthy
catering to its employees. Drinks are also freely provided to all
employees in hot season to prevent them from having heat
stroke.

Safety Precaution in Workplace
Safety of employees in workplace is crucial. Key safety
precautions are implemented as follows:

Toxic gas detector, audible and visual alarm and
emergency cut-off valve are installed in each berth.

e Parameters of all flammable and explosive substances
are carefully and closely monitored (e.g. temperature,
pressure, flow volume) during transfer. All parameters
information is transferred to PLC (Programmable Logic
Controllers) in the terminal control center for monitoring
the frontline operation.

e  Worker, who enters the tank, must wear protective
clothes and make sure that the toxic gas concentration
does not exceed the acceptable level.

e  Emergency shower, eyewash facilities and breathing
apparatus are provided.
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B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING B3. ZERIZII

The Group continues to provide comprehensive and suitable
trainings to employees to promote a learning culture based
on the Group’s “Training Management Procedure” and other
related internal policies. The Group analyses the employees’
training and operation needs to prepare training and budget
plan yearly. The Group provides diversified on-the-job trainings
to employees, particularly safety trainings, with the aim to
improve the quality of the employees’ safety and to establish a
corporate safety culture.

Generally, there are both internal and external trainings for
employees. Every new employee needs to receive a three-
month training including general knowledge and skills about
storage tanks. Assessment is conducted after the training. Only
the new employees who pass the assessment can start their
work in their position. Continuous assessment is conducted
to keep track on the performance of the current employees.
The Group also offers on-the-job training, which based on the
operation needs and annual training plan. It aims to enhance
the performance and skill of employees. External training
mainly includes certification training for specialists (e.g. safety
management personnel, engineers, accountants, etc.). The
Group invites related government departments and institutions
to deliver training to ensure employees can perform duties with
relevant qualifications.

With continuous trainings and assessments, the safety
knowledge of the employees can be strengthened and the
safety awareness can be enhanced. This can decrease the
occurrence of work-related accidents.
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In 2019, the detailed breakdown of the percentage of
employees trained and the average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee category is as follows:

Training

b=l

By gender R R
Male B
Female ey

By employment category RIEMEER

Senior management =RERE
Middle management R EIRE
General —M

B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group respects the human rights of employees, especially
gender equality and is strongly against employment of child
labour and forced labour. The Group strictly complies with
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and other
relevant laws and regulations. Recruitment guideline clearly
states that person under 16 is not allowed to work in the
Group and zero tolerance to child labour and forced labour.

During the year, the Group was not subject to any punishment
by the government and was not involved in any lawsuit related
to child labour or forced labour.

R-T—NF - ZHR REREERE
7 XilREAN LR BRERTX
SR RN T -

Average
training hours Percentage of
(hours/ employee
employee) trained (%)
PR ZIEE
(RF8E8) B2 E(%)
27.8 67.8
12.0 13.8
34.7 37.5
39.3 733
25.9 61.2
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OPERATING PRACTICES
B5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

i(« M ;E
B5. HEHEER

During the reporting period, the Group had 90 suppliers which
were located in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group depends
on suppliers to provide production materials and components
for different storage facilities. The choice of suppliers is based
on a list of criteria, including compliance, price, quality, stability
of supply and after-sales services in accordance with the
Group's internal policy “Material Procurement Management
Regulations”. The Group maintains a long-term relationship
with suppliers based on the result from supplier assessment.
During the year, the assessment result is satisfactory and there
are no significant risks related to supply chain in environmental
and social aspects.
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As a leading midstream player in providing storage service for
chemical products in South China, maintaining the safety and
quality of customers’ products in the warehouse is the utmost
concern of the Group. In order to continuously improve the
quality of service provided by the Group, we have set up an
internal policy — “Hazardous chemical storage Management
Procedures” and other related procedures in accordance
with the requirement of quality management system
(ISO9001). During the year, the Group was not subject to any
disputes relating to the storage service or punishment by the
government and was not involved in any lawsuit related to
product responsibility.

Quality Control

According to “Regulations on the Safety Administration of
Dangerous Chemicals”, the Group requires customers to
provide Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for chemicals stored.
Besides, all storage tanks are labelled with UN Number (United
Nation Number) and other relevant numbers for identification.

When customers’ goods are delivered to the tank, the testing
company engaged by the customers will carry out sample
testing on the goods, verify the certification or testing report
provided by the suppliers and check if the name, specification
and technical information of the sample meet the national/
international standards. Only goods that pass the testing and
meet the related requirements can be stored in the Group's
warehouse.

Department of commerce of the Group is responsible for
dealing the with complaints from customers. Prompt response
will be taken and the problem will be identified to prevent
similar complaints from happening. During the year, no
complaint (2018: three complaints) related to the efficiency
of goods unloading were received by the Group. The Group
responded to the cases immediately and explained to the
clients. The situation has improved after the adjustment of
the working schedule of employees and the increase in the
consumer service training.
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B6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY B6.
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Customer Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and
privacy is the key principle for operation. We comply with
relevant laws and regulations. According to Group's Staff
Handbook, employees are required to sign an agreement to
protect the privacy of clients and any other sensitive business
information. Employees who violate the agreement will receive
punishment and legal action will be taken. During the year, no
severe violation was found that posed a significant impact on
the Group.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations and tolerates no corruption or bribery
in any form, the Group strictly complies with the “Chapter Ill -
Crimes of Undermining the Order of Socialist Market Economy
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Chapter VIII
— Graft and Bribery of Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, "Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in HKSAR” and other
relevant laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption.

The Group's has adopted “Compliance Policies” and stated
that the Group takes reasonable care to ensure that it will
not export, re-export, or otherwise divert customer’s products
and other items in violation of any Trade Control Laws. All
the employees and external drivers who can get access to the
customers’ products are monitored. For example, the weight
of truck is checked when it enters and leaves the premises to
monitor any abnormal loading.

The Group has established related investigation and whistle-
blowing procedure for any corruption cases. The Group
has zero tolerance to any forms and degrees of bribery or
corruption behaviours in relation to the Group’s business
activities. During the year, no concluded cases (2018: nil)
regarding corrupt practices were brought against the issuer or
its employees.
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COMMUNITY HE

B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT B8. #HE&RE

—T-NEFR

The Group is committed to contributing to the society and
fostering positive relationship with the communities in which
the Group operates. The Group has related policies and
measures to understand the needs of the community, such
as villagers, employees and non-governmental organisations.
Contribution to the community and maintaining harmonious
relationship with the stakeholders in the region of operation
are crucial for the sustainable development.

During the year, the Group participated in many charitable
events and obtained outstanding social awards which
recognised our contribution to the community. The details of
charitable events and outstanding social awards are listed as
below:

e Donation of RMB20,000 to support alleviation of
poverty. "EZEm A — & B)HHR" was awarded to the
Group.

o UHETHYSHEMEH DAL ESE" was awarded to the
Group.

o  "ZRAIZ o —WFHE"LHEEL"" was awarded to the
Group.

o "ERAMMLEEBLIEMBKLEEN"" was awarded
to the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB HRE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hans Energy Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans
Energy Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 87 to 207, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

BRETER
RRETFHERRERMNERAE - R
RYARGREVBERRNBARRERD
FH GLERICERMBABRRREY
BHmERMHARRRETEEN - B3
TeHELERRHEEBNER -

matters.

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant

and equipment and interests in leasehold land
held for own use

AR BERRE  URBEARZEE LB
=AY EERE

Refer to accounting policy (i) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

FDH A RRA R BR()RAF10

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREITER

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land held for
own use accounted for 36% of the total assets of the
Group. These assets principally comprised dock and
storage facilities which had a carrying value of HK$511
million as at 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recorded a loss from operations of HK$78 million. In
particular, one of the cash-generating units (“CGU")
with property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land held for own use carried at a value of
HK$732 million as at 31 December 2019, recorded a
loss before taxation and reversal of impairment loss of
HK$21 million.

EEER-_ZT-NF+_A=+—HODE BEK
R ARBEERZEE D MNERE EXER
BEM36% - ZFEETEBRBBANTFRE - H
R-ZE-NF+-A=t—HOKREERSIEET

REBZE-_Z-NF+RA=1+—HBLLFE  FEE
578008 BT LEE - AT P —HH#EA
ME - BERREARFEERZBE T HERE (R
—E-NF+ZA=+—REERTEETINRE
ELBM([REELEM ) FERTIBERBRREE
AIE182, 10088 7T ©

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

BENES A REZEE

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
of property, plant and equipment and interests
in leasehold land held for own use included the
following:

e evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the amounts of property, plant and
equipment, interests in leasehold land held for
own use and other assets allocated to each CGU;
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant

and equipment and interests in leasehold land
held for own use

Refer to accounting policy (i) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

LR - MERERE  URBBEEHERAEBR
T iR EERE

FR AR A R R A E A R ()R 10

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREtER

In addition, the current economic environment in the
PRC has created uncertainty in relation to the demand
for the Group’s facilities. Consequently, management
considered that potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment and interests in leasehold land
held for own use existed for this loss making CGU as
at 31 December 2019.

Management performed impairment assessments
for property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land held for own use using the value in
use model and compared the aggregate carrying
values of each separately identifiable CGU to which
the property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land held for own use had been allocated
with the net present value of the respective future cash
flow (“discounted cash flow analyses”) to determine
the amount of impairment which should be recognised
for the year, if any.
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e assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which included
evaluating the impairment indicators identified
by management and assessing the impairment
assessment methodology with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e obtaining and inspecting the value in use
calculations prepared by management and on
which the directors’ impairment assessments for
property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land held for own use were based;

e challenging the key assumptions and estimates
adopted by management in the discounted
cash flow analyses by comparing the significant
inputs, which included future revenue and future
operating costs with the historical performance,
committed contracts on hand, the financial
budgets of the Group which had data been
approved by the directors and externally derived,
which included projected growth rates, projected
inflation rates and industry analyses published by
external research institutes;
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant {E¥% - BERZE  ARSEFERAZHE L i

and equipment and interests in leasehold land FHHEERE
held for own use

Refer to accounting policy (i) and note 10 to the FF2R4EHFEHRZLSBFENLIFET0
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRETER BN EFNAREZER

We identified assessing potential impairment of e  assessing the discount rates applied in the

property, plant and equipment and interests in discounted cash flow analyses by benchmarking
leasehold land held for own use as a key audit matter against those of other similar companies in the
because of the significant management judgement same industry;

required in making assumptions and estimations,

which can be inherently uncertain and could be subject e  evaluating the historical accuracy of management’s

to management bias. value in use calculations by comparing the forecasts
at the end of the previous financial year for revenue
and operating costs with the actual outcomes in
the current year and investigating reasons for any
significant differences between the forecast and
actual results;

e performing sensitivity analyses for both the discount
rates and future revenue and considering the
resulting impact on the impairment assessments and
whether there were any indicators of management
bias in the selection of assumptions.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

84

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Kong Wing Hung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2020
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for the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZTLHI7R)

2018
—E—N\F
$'000
T
(Note)
(FfF5E)

Continuing operations: BEREE
Revenue WA 3 314,845 141,556
Direct costs and operating expenses B &K A M AL 2 & FH (272,987) (107,964)
Gross profit ER 41,858 33,592
Other income E bl 4 22,508 7,602
Administrative expenses 1TEE A (177.712) (52,724)
Reversal of/(provision for) AR B R (FE)

impairment losses 5(c) 35,455 (38,353)
Loss from operations KEEE (77.891) (49,883)
Finance costs BA AR AN 5(a) (49,933) (39,633)
Loss before taxation RRBiATEE 5 (127,824) (89,516)
Income tax FriSHi 6(a) (3,552) (9,099)
Loss for the year from BHEREEK

continuing operations FREIE (131,376) (98,615)
Discontinued operations: HIERE K
Profit for the year from RIS

discontinued operations FREF 31 1,234,689 35,164
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF(FHE) 1,103,313 (63,451)
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Consolidated Income Statement

FREHEE

for the year ended 31 December 2019 B#Z T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIR)

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) for the year

Basic and diluted earnings/

(losses) per share

— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

BEth -

ZA/NS S
— B R X
— RIS

FEIER R
— BRI E R
— IR ETS

FREF,(FR)

BREAREE
BRI (&B8)
—FRBREXE
— R T

information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 94 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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2018
—E—N\F
$'000

T+t
(Note)
(BF5E)

(131,915) (94,757)
1,240,535 32,351
1,108,620 (62,406)

539 (3,858)
(5.846) 2,813
(5,307) (1,045)
1,103,313 (63,451)
9
(3.53) cents 1l (2.54) cents 1Ll
33.23 cents 0.87 cents Il
29.70 cents 1L (1.67) cents 1l

Mz AEBEER -_Z-AF-A-BRAL
ERTHE AN KB B s 4
ANE165% - RIFULTE - LLEER IR

| - RHIFE1Q)

BREIE
BiRRZ 5 o

94E Z=207 B 2 KIsE A4 I F 8
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NF+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZTLHI7R)

AONES]
—E-N\F
$'000
T
(Note)
(Bft%E)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERHER(BE) 1,103,313 (63,451)
Other comprehensive income FRHEAM
for the year: EEWE :
ltem that may be reclassified HigrgeEH
subsequently to consolidated DEELREEHR
income statement: ®IER :
Exchange differences on BEMEQR
translation of financial BBHmE.Z
statements of subsidiaries EH =5
— continuing operations — B ER (265) (25,467)
— discontinued operations — RIS ET 632 14,196
Release of translation reserve upon & —RiHE QA F#E
disposal of a subsidiary R E 31 (85,880) -
Other comprehensive income FREMEE
for the year g (85,513) (11,271)
Total comprehensive FRE2EWE
income for the year e 1,017,800 (74,722)
Attributable to: BEAk -
Equity shareholders of the Company A2 &R
— continuing operations —REREER (131,500) (118,247)
— discontinued operations — PR ETE 1,155,238 45,411
1,023,738 (72,836)
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR AR
— continuing operations —FHEICE T (141) (5,835)
— discontinued operations — R EETE (5,797) 3,949
(5,938) (1,886)
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENE
for the year pab-c] 1,017,800 (74,722)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the ~ HIiE : AEBEER T —NAF—-A—BERAL

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative BT RE AT S R R(E BB E -
information is not restated. See note 1(c). BIYEE165% - IRIEIL A% - LEERE R R

E5 - RMFEO -

The notes on pages 94 to 207 form part of these financial ~#MXE94E £207 8 2 I 5T RAEK L F 81
statements. k2 —8bH o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meBEERER

at 31 December 2019 R=F—hA&F+-A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFTEHIR)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in leasehold land held
for own use

Prepayments

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Current assets

Interests in leasehold land held
for own use

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade and other paybales
and contract liabilities
Bank loans and other borrowings
Lease liabilities
Current taxation
Amounts due to related parties

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

90

FRBEE

E R G
FEERZ

HE s
AR IR
BIVEE

[k

hRBEE
FEERZ

MHE iz
TE
B 5 MM RKTIR
RelkHeFERR

DERFHEREZEE

RBRE
B 5 MEMENTR
UREHAE
RITERREMER
HERR
BIEATRIA
& 1 ARG

IR

REBEE(AF)FE
REERABAE

10

10
"1
12
13

10

14

16
17(a)

31

18
19
20
21(a)
22

2018

—E—N\F

$'000

T+t

(Note)

(BF5E)

574,017 606,718
173,912 177,803
22,711 704
1,394 1,565
4,729 -
776,763 786,790
- 4,741

149,154 8,284
174,063 24,907
974,510 881,071
1,297,727 919,003
- 248,967
1,297,727 1,167,970
128,252 941,306
50,021 90,162
5,246 -
1,481 9,096
112,958 205,835
297,958 1,246,399
999,769 (78,429)
1,776,532 708,361
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SRREERMER

at 31 December 2019 R=E—h&E+=A=+—8H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BA7ITFI/R)

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans and other borrowings
Lease liabilities

Amounts due to related parties
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity/(deficit) attributable

to equity shareholders
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIT)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20

March 2020.

Yang Dong

BE
Director

EZE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the

FFRBEaE
RITERREMER 19
HEAE 20
P RAES 5 5 0E 22
FERIBEE 21(b)
BE (8 FE
BAR#E
&N 25(b)
e
RATRER
EihsaRER
(5 #4H)
e RS
WS (BH)
i
£y

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 94 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

=

=

%

2018

—E—N\F

$'000

T

(Note)

(FfF5E)

652,478 789,772

2,886 -

167,448 -

- 2,971

822,812 792,743
953,720 (84,382)
373,264 373,264
565,361 (450,056)
938,625 (76,792)
15,095 (7,590)
953,720 (84,382)

“EFE-A-tHEEZTSHAER
|35 o

Zhang Lei
R
Director

EF

Mz AEEER-Z-IF—A-BRAK

ERTHBE WA R R CE B TSI 2
RDFE165% - RIFULTE - LEER LK
E7 - RMEENQ -

FNEAA E207 B 2 T SARK I F

Bz —#D
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERB X

for the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—F—NF+-_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAFTEHIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRRRELRS

Treasury

shares held (Accumulated

under share  Share-based losses)/ Non- Total
Share Share Special ~ Translation  Statutory award compensation retained controlling ~~ (deficit)/
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve scheme reserve profits Total interests equity

RERS

Efite
b Rt (RitEE)/
RERE j EERE  HMER REEH
§000 | §000 §000 §000
T T T v
{ ) (Note)

Balance at 1 January 2018 H-E-N%

-B-B28 M/A T (5148 99936 31947 - - (9495)  (07%8) 19154 8398
Loss forthe year ERER - - - - - - - (2408 G200 (0045 (63450)
Other comprehensive income Lh2mks - - - (10,430) - - - - (10,430) ®1n )
Total comprehensive income 2ENEES - - - (10430 - - - (62406) (72,836 (1886 (7472

Dividend declared to non-controllng ~ SiBAEER
interestsin respect of prioryears ~ FARERER

fRE - - - - - - - - - (24,85) (24,85)
Fquity sttled share-based I\EREEL
transaction Rh%% - - - - - - 6,800 - 6,800 - 6,800
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-B-NE
and 1 January 2019 t2A=+-RR
“%-hE
-R-BRks 373,264 10417 (251,428) 89,506 31,947 - 6,800 (1,037,358) (76,192) (7,590) (84,382)
Profitfor the year ERER - - - - - - - 1,108,620 1,108,620 (5307)  1,103313
Other comprehensive income Lp2EkE - - - (84,882) - - - - (84,882) 631 (85519)
Total comprehensive income 2EkSEE - - - (84,882) - - - 1108620 1,023,738 (5938) 1,017,800
Dividend declared to HBEERR
non-controling interests FERERER
inrespectof prior years HRE - - - - - - - - - (5021) (5021)
Equity setled share-based INEREEY
transaction RG%5 - - - - - - 8,260 - 8,260 - 8,260
Lapse of share options EREAN - - - - - - (360) 360 - - -
Shares purchased under share RiERHED
award scheme HEEARR - - - - - (16581) - - (16581) - (16581)
Acquisiion of a subsidiary WE-EHELT
(Note 26) (Hzk26) - - - - - - - - - 68 68
Capitalinection from non- FiREaTE
controling interests - - - - - - - - - 52,746 52,746
Disposal of equity interests in HEWBARZ
asubsidry (Note 31) (i) - - - - - - - - - (1900 (19470)

Balance at 31 December 2019 R-E-hETZR
=t-AzEs 373,264 10417 (251,428) 4,624 31,947 (16,581) 14,700 71,622 938,625 15,095 953,720

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using ~ Mi5E : AEBEER T —NFE—F—BRABE
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the ERTH R MEVI P FER (Efﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁ%
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). ARI) F165% - MBUFE - ERER

WAREF > RHFEC) °

The notes on pages 94 to 207 form part of these financial &R FEIABE E207 8B 2 M 5T AR I E B
statements. Bk —H#p7 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

)77 g = Iﬁa%l)lbiﬂ%

for the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M/%TE@]T)

Operating activities

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
PRC dividend income withholding tax paid
PRC corporate income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Net proceed from disposal of discontinued
operations

Net payment for acquisition of a subsidiary

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds received from the disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Prepayments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Prepayments for right-of-use assets

Interest received

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Advances from a related party

Repayment to related parties

Payment for purchase of shares
under share award scheme

Proceeds from new bank loan

Repayment of bank loans

Capital injection from non-controlling
interests

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 94 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

—NEFZA=Z+—HIFE

2018
—2\&
$'000
F
(Note)
i)
B ETE)
EEEB(R)/FEEe 170 (141,918) 155,610
EH¢1%%%A%W& (11,987) -
BERPEMEMER (86) -
BT
(FrR) /3R & 38 (153,991) 155,610
REES
HERHEEER Y
PSR E 55 31 619,995 890,206
WEE—REHB AR 2
X R 26 (142,886) _
%A%% B K
ﬁZiﬁ (30,142) (13,850)
ﬁ%%¥
-“ﬁzauﬁzﬁﬁﬁfk 174 3,165
BAYVE BER
R 2 BN R (20,557) -
FAEEEENTE (1,806) 1,453
BUFIE 9,890 1,453
RETEHFERETFE
434,668 880,974
BEEE
[SANEESS 17(0) (51,934) (45,940)
Bl 5 B 3B 17(c) 236,869 30,465
1B IR RAR 7 7R 17(c) (232,042) (88,927)
R 226D
FEIEERG 2N (16,581) -
HBITERE A 17(c) 749,896 .
BEETER 17(c) (908,068) (61,656)
EiS g i P E
52,746 -
B IR R AR S (5,021) (24,858)
Eﬁmﬁﬁémﬁ$@% 17(c) (4,334) -
BENHERSHNFISHD 17(c) (150) -
BMEETBFARSFE (178,619) (190,916)
AeRBLEMEER
INFEEE 102,058 845,668
R—BA—B2zBHER
ReZEER 881,071 41,161
NEERBEH
(8,619) (5,758)
R+=A=+-H=2
ReRBEEEER 17(a) 974,510 881,071

M AEEER —T-NF—A
ERTHBB A 2 [ RCE B TS s 2

— BB

ADEE165R » RIFUETTE - LA R R

EE\J o B

HINF4
i‘%iﬁﬁz—* )

2WEZWEE@W%

)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE R FEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR + BHEFERERSIN)

1

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 1(v)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

EXEFEE

(a)

(b)

BREH
MWEMBHRERIREMBER
(BETBHHREERD((FBH
BmEEAN) D RE - LR F
REEEEEMAG((BES
FHERAE )R 2 PR B AR 2
BKEBMBREER) - (B
FRPEAD(TEA G ER D &
2R BEAREGHRARE
ABRANRGID) 2 WERE - IF
e M BHREITTEE BB AR
AR ARIESF MR £
MAAERZKBERTE - A%
BRAZEXGBREEN
o

BEGFE G HEME TH
RIRBER (BB Y B REE
) RAKEZERN St HHE
BRI IR ATER A © MiE
WOR RV ERAZ FHET &
RRIBRT < A (RS B R R
RILFMH K 2 AT HIR R
A& 5T HAMIARRE ) P ol B2 £
SETBRES ZEH

BEmRZmBEE
HE-_Z—hWF+-H=1T—H
IEFEZEEVBEHRERBERR
AIREKMBARZERE °

IREI SRR 2T EEE
AR SR FRANESE o

FRBEEMBELEZHEM
BIZARE B8 2 A BRI & AR
EBIEEDIR(RHEW) ©

RREFTE(HEATBHREERD
ZHHmE - BIEBRER A
ERRERNLEE AR K
ARRRZ 2R BIEDHE -
flat kAR - BRfEE AR
HOREBELR  URZHE
ERRBR MEEEAE 2 HAM
EEMEL - BRGRBRE R
EEEHMENRRBRRNEER
BB IREE RS T 2 5 -
ERGERAERAAGTHEMT
A o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

(0

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases,
and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating
leases — incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the
substance of transactions involving the legal form of
a lease. It introduces a single accounting model for
lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-
term leases”) and leases of low-value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from HKAS
17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
guantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess the
effect that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

“E-NFEFR ERRRERAT

BEX

SR (E)

(b) MBHRZEREREE)

(0

ARBFEL A RARBRRE
TR - MR EFTZENR
EREZHME - MAETEER
AT E R MREHE
R B AR KORR AR - BB
19 57 8 17 5B o A ) R oK 2K A e e

N
=l
e ©

B e 2 7 L T B 7E B R B 7
BRABAFZERN(EBHHR
o5 2R R B P 4 O U T K (4 51 AY
THEENEZRR

B B2 H
BREGFRI A ASCEM—IEIET
(BEBPBHREER])  (FEY
BHREERDFE 165 - HERS
(R BW B MRS ERDEERT -
WRAREH ARG EB &R E
R o

BB BB RELADE 165 -
RSN - AR (TR A
A 858, 2 717 S B A A B o
B ERIM 2 RSN E B
REB o R 4 K 8 R
AR HI R A AR 3T B R
e

(BRMBHRELER)DE 165 - #H
g

(BB BIEER)DF 165K
(BBEHEADFITSR - HER
HERE - B8 (BERMBRE
RRELER)REE4  BETx
HELERAHE - BE(EAR
BEES)RBE 1SN  AEH
E-EBENBE(ERIRELZE
B)REFE27  FIESREE
EREEARZZAE » ApEME
ABIAE—&FERA - 230FM
ABLPIERERREREEE R
HEEE  WHEBR12MEA8 A
THEE([EHEE DEEE
BEEMERI - @A E(HFAES
SPERDE17R AR
KRB LR IE -

(BB BIREERNDE 165713
ANBINEMEREERBERE © §
ESHBHRREREFAFEHE
EHERBYBNN - MBERR R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FA RS SRR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach. Comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under HKAS

17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options
applied are set out below:

96

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the
Group has used the transitional practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously assessed
as leases under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted
for as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements continue
to be accounted for as executory contracts.

AR EE ()
© EHEEZB(E)

(BERUBHELERDFE 165 - H
B(#)

AEEBE-FT-hF-—A—HE
s ERACEAH RS 2ER)DE
165% ° AR EIRZRAEEFTH
BPE - LEBERLARES - A
R BB ERDFE 175
E IR

ERBESHERRESH AR
FEUNFERBRIEERZE
—FRHREIIT ¢

a. MEZHESR
HMEEEZEHTESR
ZHIZ B - (BET R
EEADEIHERIEEF =
B — BB 2 51
ERAEEMERHEE
AEBETEAEET
EEFPRERERERAD
HRIEE - MBREZA
HERET A KBNS
IR T - BIGE BRI -

AEEBEBKEETHRE
RSB 16FRBEZ TS
ERAR-_Z—hLF—A—
Bz BT ERZA
BN _ZT—hEFE—A
—BHAEEIZ2AHME -
AEEERABREERE
BAEBMARELHBK
BEMEZ KRG - &
It ERTRBCE B G E
BB M AREZS
NBBIFE RCE B IERE
ER)E1RIETHEA
Bk - MR G A RE
IREZ 2 A OBE ANKE
BHMITEL °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

—E-NFFH

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17,
other than those short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets which are exempt. As far as the
Group is concerned, these newly capitalised leases
are primarily in relation to property, plant and
equipment as disclosed in note 10(c) and note 28(a).
For an explanation of how the Group applies lessee
accounting, see note 1(h)(i).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1
January 2019), the Group determined the length
of the remaining lease terms and measured the
lease liabilities for the leases previously classified
as operating leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1 January
2019. The weighted average of the incremental
borrowing rates used for determination of the
present value of the remaining lease payments was
2.4%.

ERRFEERAT

BAEHBE(H)

BHEERE ()
(BBUBRELA)E6YH -
£

(9]

b.

EEAG T ENBETE
(BAEMBHREERDE16
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SE(HMERCELESTE
AYFE17RAER) -
R RNEBERES /EM
AKBHRAEHREERE
BREARB(EBGTE
ADE17TENBAKERE
ZME - ERFEHEE
LEEEEEHEER®
BRON - LAKEMS » %
EHERAMEEETES N
B &£ 10(c) K Pl 7E28(a) T
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 3 = B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b.  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption and
practical expedients at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16:

(i) the Group elected not to apply the requirements
of HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases
for which the remaining lease term ends within
12 months from the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends on
or before 31 December 2019; and

(i) when measuring the lease liabilities at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics
(such as leases with a similar remaining lease
term for a similar class of underlying asset in a
similar economic environment).

1
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BRERAZEERARB
B ARBHAFS
BERUSBZEES
B (PIanR R IR
BREELUMEEEE
Bh AR SRAEHAESE
ZHEE)EAE AR

>__%«__<o

98 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA TTHIR + BEEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 BEREFBEE)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) () EtBEREH(E)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) (BBMBmMEELNE 165 - &
B(#E)
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued) b. EBEASHHENBEY
2(EF)
The following table reconciles the operating lease TRV _ZE—NF
commitments as disclosed in note 28(a) as at 31 +-A=+—HZH8WMHE
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease ERE(RME28(a) &)
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019: HR-_ZT—hLFE—HF—H
ERRANEGE BV
ER2HAR

1 January 2019

—E-NF
—H—8
$'000
T
Operating lease commitments R-ZE—N\F+—A
at 31 December 2018 =+ RZEEHEEARE 8,494
Less: commitments relating to W BABRENMCMEE
leases exempt from capitalisation: HAGE
— short-term leases and other leases — 5 EATR & R IR AR
with remaining lease term ending R-ZE—HhFE+—A
on or before 31 December 2019 =+—HskzhER
I HMHEE (2,430)
6,064
Less: total future interest expenses W AR B BEE (157)
Present value of remaining lease payments, FIAAENH2HE - £
discounted using the incremental borrowing RZE—NF—HA—H
rate at 1 January 2019 ZIZEEE RIS 5,907
Total lease liabilities recognised RZE—-hF—H—H
at 1 January 2019 R EBEEE 5,907
The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously HER D HEAREMHEZ
classified as operating leases have been recognised at HEEHCEAREERD
an amount equal to the amount recognised for the ZRENFHREERED
remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount BREEC LHEBER
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating ER-ZZFZ-NF+=A
to that lease recognised in the balance sheet at 31 =T HEEAEXRER
December 2018. ZHEBB 2 AMTEMNK
A HENRESBEIELA
2 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R SRR A o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b.

100

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated

balance sheet:

Line items in the consolidated
balance sheet impacted by the
adoption of HKFRS 16:

Property, plant and equipment
Prepayments
Interests in leasehold land held for
own Use
Total non-current assets
Interests in leasehold land
held for own use
Trade and other receivables
Total current assets
Lease liabilities (current)
Total current liabilities
Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities
Lease liabilities (non-current)

Total non-current liabilities

Net liabilities

Carrying
amount at
31 December
2018

RZE-N\&
+=A=t-H
ZIRE{E
$'000
s>
ZRMERRE
REER)E165
YENRAEES
ERER !
nE - BERE 606,718
ERFE 704
BEER ELT
B 177,803
FRBEELE 786,790
BEERZRET N
B 4741
ELYE e 24,907
FBEELE 1,167,970
RERE(REY) -
RBaEME 1,246,399
FBRETE 78,429
BEBERNRDEE 708,361
RERE(FERD) -
FRBaREaE 792,743
8EFE 84,382

BEREHEEE)

(9]

SR EESE(E)

(BEBMBRELER)E165 - #H

(%)
b.

Reclassification
from lease
prepayments
(Note 2) and
interests in
leasehold
land held for
own use
(Note 1)
HERAFE
(W2 R
BEEAZ
HEtth
BREHNIR
(HzE1)
$'000

Tr

EBEAGTTERBES
2(#)
TREGLRACE B I 50
ERIDER g JE
BEERERNTE

Capitalisation
of operating
lease
contracts

Carrying
amount at
1 January
2019

Ro2-hE
—-A-A
ZERE

$'000
Tit

L
SREAL
$/000

T

- 5907 612,625

256 - 960
4,741 - 182,544
4,997 5,907 797,694
(4,741) - -
(256) - 24,651
(4,997) - 1,162,973
- 3538 3,538

- 3,538 1,249,937

- 3,538 81,967

- 2,369 710,730

- 2,369 2,369

- 2,369 795,112

- - 84,382
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A THIR © BB FAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b.

—E-NFFH

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Prepayments represent prepayments of land use
rights on leasehold land located in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group is granted
with land use rights for a period of 50 years. The
net carrying amount of lease prepayments were
reclassified as right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16. Also, there were no
ongoing payment obligations under the terms of the
land lease, so no lease liabilities were recognised at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

Prepayments represent prepayment of costal usage
right located in the PRC. The Group is granted
with costal usage rights for a period of 8 years. The
net carrying amount of lease prepayments were
reclassified as right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16. Also, there were no
ongoing payment obligations under the terms of the
land lease, so no lease liabilities were recognised at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

ERRFEERAT

EDN-E e G

y,

(0 EBEREHE)
(BRMBHERELER)DF 165 - #H

&%)

b. AMAGFTEARBEF

20&)

PEET -

fgFE2 -

T R IE e AL R EE
ARKEFBE([HEH])
HHEE T E T (E
BAEBEMRE - A%
EES s
BHIS0E - RIFE
BCEBT B HEE
AE1eRER - HE
N FBERNEEFEE
BEEMHHEABERE
BE o o BIBEL
WS R EEE
NZEF EHRE
RERCE BT IERE
ERNE 165 E Bt E
ERIMHEEaE -

BN FREML R T E
B 5 0 PR R O FE A
WA - REEER
BEERAE - K8
F - ROFPER(ES
MBMELER)FE 16
KER EEBEMK
EMREFECDERN
DERERAEEE -
BSN  REBELHEE
Y BISE N RE
£ AR ERER
(BEYBMELER)
E165E B EAER
EREERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FA RS SRR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

102

Impact on the financial result, segment results and
cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. This
results in a positive impact on the reported profit
from operations in the Group’s consolidated income
statement, as compared to the results if HKAS 17
had been applied during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee
is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest element
(see note 17(c)). These elements are classified as
financing cash outflows, similar to how leases
previously classified as finance leases under HKAS
17 were treated, rather than as operating cash
outflows, as was the case for operating leases under
HKAS 17. Although total cash flows are unaffected,
the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a
significant change in presentation of cash flows
within the cash flow statement (see note 17(d)).

EXEBEE)

(0 EHEEREH(E)
(BERUBHELERDFE 165 - H
B(#)
¢ HAKEEBEEE o

REENEERENTE

ER-_ZT—NE—HF—A
MipERERAEEE KA
EafEE  ~EE(EAE
BA)EERBEREN
FEEHRBEREENTE
FSZ A REREEENT
E OmMEBANEREE
BRAHAGCEREES
WAER S MBUR © 81
REREREEGT AR
FITHRATE R EEMEL -
I A EBELZEE RERTP
BISMEE R EATER

S, 46
FE -

FHREREXRT  AEEH
(ERFEMBAN) BBRIEE
MEBELZAHES DK
BEEARIH MF B (R
MIEE17(c)) °» ZEIH D
fhABMER SR (MIEL
EHRemL) - BRI
AIRIECE B G RTER)E
1T7TREDBABERER
FAEMRE R BIKE
BT ERNE 175 A&
HE #ABRESRKEXR
SRE - BRREM(CEBH
EREERDFE 165 EHR
BERMERANENRESR
EFHREREH(RHF
17(d)) »
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

d. Lessor accounting
The Group leases out a number of items of dock and
storage facilities as the lessor of operating leases.
The accounting policies applicable to the Group as
a lessor remain substantially unchanged from those
under HKAS 17.

Subsidiaries, controlled structured entities and non-
controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so
that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any
voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the
relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 3 = B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries, controlled structured entities and non-

controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 1(n) or (g) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(i)). A controlled structured entity that is directly
held by the Company is considered as branch/agent of
the Company and the assets and liabilities thereof are
accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company in
the Company’s balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Goodwill

()

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(i)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see note 1(u)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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FA RS SRR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A THIR -

1
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(i)  (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

HAFAERIN)

1 EXRSFHEEE)
) W% BERREE)
(i &)
WE - BB LREEREBK
A2 &Iy T oI E A
EREH  EHRERE
(BRI - LNEREAE

- Buildings 30 years —EF 30%F
- Dock and storage facilities 5-30 years — SR M1 5-30%F
B9

— Office equipment 5-10 years e N 5-10%F

— Motor vehicles 5-10 years — g5 5-104F

— Leasehold improvements Over the term of —HEMERE A HA
the lease

— Right-of-use assets Over the term of —fEAEEE T HA
the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if

any, are reviewed annually.

(i)  Construction in progress represents oil and gas (ii)

station under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
1(i)). Cost comprises direct costs of construction
as well as interest charges, and foreign exchange
differences on related borrowed funds to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
charges, during the periods of construction.

Construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is ready for its
intended use. No depreciation is provided in respect

of construction in progress.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).
Amortisation of club memberships is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of 17 to 24 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

(i) Asalessee
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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1
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

0}

A

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 1(f) and 1(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)
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(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
in "interests in leasehold land held for own
use”, "property, plant and equipment” or
“prepayments” and presents lease liabilities
separately in the balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FA RS SRR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

0}

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the
Group classified leases as finance leases if the
leases transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group. Leases
which did not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group were
classified as operating leases, except that the
leasehold land held for own use, the fair value
of which could not be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, was
accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building was also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease was the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

Where the Group had the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases were charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis was more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received were
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
were incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 1(s)(i).

(i) Credit loss and impairment of assets

0}

—E-NFFH

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses ("ECLs"”) on the financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, and trade and other receivables) and
lease receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value are not subject
to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FA RS SRR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Creditloss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

112

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the balance sheet
date; and

—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

—E-NFFH

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the balance sheet date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
balance sheet date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FA RS SRR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Creditloss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

114

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each balance sheet date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument'’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
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—E-NFFH

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(s)(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Creditloss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

(i)

116

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset and
lease receivable is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

—E-NFFH

Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FA RS SRR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Creditloss and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

—  Reversal of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the balance sheet date (see notes 1 (i)(i) and
(ii)). Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or
a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the balance sheet
date to which the interim period relates.

(j) Inventories
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Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()]

(k)

Inventories (continued)

(i) Inventories (continued)
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

(ii) Consumable parts
Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance
purposes by the Group are stated at cost less any
provision for obsolescence.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(s)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(i)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(1)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(s)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(1)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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HAFAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0}

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(k)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

13).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note

1(u)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

“E-NFEFR

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits/accumulated losses).

Share award scheme

For the share award scheme, the Group may
purchase its own shares through the trustee of the
share award scheme from the open market for the
shares to be granted under the share award scheme.
Shares held by a controlled structured entity of the
Group (see note 1(d)) to meet obligations under
share award scheme (see note 24(a)) are accounted
for as treasury shares in the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination) and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables (including amounts due to
related parties) are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sales of goods, the provision of services or the
use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Revenue and other income (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
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for any effects of a significant financing component if the

period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate

net lease payments receivable.

(ii) Portincome

Port income is recognised upon performance of the

services.

(iii) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products, depending

on the terms agreed with customers.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv)

(v)

—E-NFFH

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note

10)(0).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful
life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries in the PRC are Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi Yuan (“RMB") respectively. The Group adopted
Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

BEX

(t)

BB ()

SR
ARBRERTEZHBRRZ
W EB DRI REBETRARYE
(TARK]) - REBRBETS
2HEE -

FRZINERZ IR 5 A NER
BE - DINETHEC BB EER
BEOREERZERRE - &
RBEENERRAER -

LA B ZINE IR B E
ERABERRZFAZEXRGRE -
X5 BHR AR RIER A
EWEELRBENES - Uk
B EZINEIEREERA
& AAEEEAABEERZE

M EM RBTTAINZ BB 2 %
BERERARZXZAMNEXRESE
ZEZRBME BT - BEREBER
HBRREE R 2 EXME 5B
TC o PREAZE R ZREET AHM
P E R RO S (s
FRET -

EHE—REBMENEER L
IETTH - ERRHENMER
ERR% - BRRFEHHRAEL
ERTHEWEREN D EIE
A o

H

Bk

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use are complete.

Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued

operations

(i) Non-current assets held for sale
A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held
for sale when the above criteria for classification
as held for sale are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.
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1

130

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

0}

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group)
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until disposal,
the non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements
of the Group and the Company are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and
investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as
a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

(ii)

—E-NFFH

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale (see (i) above),
if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal of the assets, or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 BEARETEBEGE)
(w) Related parties (w) BEBAL
(@) A person, or a close member of that person'’s family, is (@ fWEBIATAL BIZAL
related to the Group if that person: HE AT 2 FERE
BRE

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () PEHlgk L E I A%

;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) YAXEBEE K

2.

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel (i) BAEBERANEEL

of the Group or the Group's parent. NAEIMFEEEEK
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) WFFE THERMEH - B
following conditions applies: I EEEAEE A EE

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEELAKAEBER
same group (which means that each parent, —EBZHKER T(Eﬂ
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the E&QF - MEA
others). REZEHBA ﬂfﬁilﬂz

HMBEBEE) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —"REBAS—ETE
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of MEELEARISHAE D
a member of a group of which the other entity is ¥ (KB —EBEAKE
a member). RAZEEETKE

RNAIZBERTHE
BIE) o

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MREBHAR—F
third party. =AMERRE -

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —" RERAF-HE
and the other entity is an associate of the third BReaeEhE M3
entity. —ERARE=FE

GEL0)=w/NC I
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

“E-NFEFR ERRRERAT
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(W) BEE AL (&)
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HAFAERIN)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(a)

Impairments

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment
is identified, management prepares discounted future
cash flow to assess the differences between the carrying
amount and value in use and provides for impairment loss.
Any change in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision of
impairment loss and affect the Group's financial position.

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of
estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group'’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions
at the end of reporting period. Where the estimation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
affect the carrying amounts of trade receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group keeps assessing the expected credit
loss of trade receivables during their expected lives.

ST HIE R A5
ERARSE ST BOR 2 M st #E
EAEFI T HEERR 2 T ERIRIT

(a)

RAE

AEENEEERBRAEHNE
EREE  AEEREAREN
EBEUR - ERRERETR
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RIRE IR P ERA O RRAE
2B &8 hn=kir B BRREE
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AR
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B 5 RUSRA M ER B EET
it WERFREM G KA -
BEHEEERDERAEERE
MEEEBRER(EHEBAR
ERFETHE) RRBEHR
HE AR AR REEEEB AT
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it AIBBERERTEE RN
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI « SHEERERIN)

2

—E-NFFH

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
(b) Depreciation

(o)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during the reporting
period. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

Provision for taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are transactions during the ordinary
course of business for which calculations of the ultimate
tax provision is uncertain. The final outcomes are subject
to uncertainties and resulting liabilities may exceed
provisions or tax losses may not be carried forward.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
related to tax losses, depends on the management’s
expectation of taxable profit that will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. Any difference of the
actual outcome and estimated profit would affect the
utilisation of deferred tax assets.

ERRFEERAT

2
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WAR 7 HBHRE
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The principal activities of the Group are trading of AEBZETEERAEE RIRMH
and provision of terminal, storage, warehousing and mmAAabERERE - 77 B

transshipment services for oil and petrochemical products. [ N B g AR A o
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () HEEFEVNBAREE
customers by major service lines REEBESNDE

Revenue from contracts with  FEBIEREER
customers not within the F1SREE IR E
scope of HKFRS 15 BEEGHHIKBA
Continuing operations BEREEK
Storage and warehousing income  BFfE R A B A 118,233 108,909
Discontinued operations HILRE K
Storage and warehousing income  §717 & & B A 8,990 118,658
127,223 227,567
Revenue from contracts with BB ERE AR
customers within the E1SREERNRE
scope of HKFRS 15 BEFEHHBA
Continuing operations BEREHER
Port and transshipment income 780 R EE&HULA 33,822 32,647
Sales of oil and petrochemical HEAHRAER
products 162,790 -
196,612 32,647
Discontinued operations BRI RE R
Port and transshipment income 7 O R #EsgLIg A 4,487 33,789
201,099 66,436
328,322 294,003
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with KEBEFPEHRBARE

BRI I5 8 D8 5
189 BIRH EE3(b)(i) K2 3(b)
(iii) HE 25 o

customers by business lines and by geographic
markets is disclosed in notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iii)
respectively.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a) Revenue (continued)

(i)

(iii)

—E-NFFH

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contacts with customers in
existence at the balance sheet date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 or HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts
such that the above information does not include
information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the sales contracts
that had an original expected duration of one year or
less.

In 2019, the Group has three customers (2018:
Nil) with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenues. Revenues from sales of
oil and petrochemical products to these customers
arose in the PRC and amounted to approximately
$45,124,000 (2018: $Nil), $39,847,000 (2018: $Nil)
and $37,628,000 (2018: $Nil) respectively. Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from the Group’s
major customers are set out in note 27(a).

ERRFEERAT

3

WAR D BRHRE ()
WA (&)

(a)

(i)

(iii)

FHMERARRBEARER
EEABRAMREEF
HE KA

AEBEHEBERHER
FI21BRHB B BREE
Q1SRN EREEL
W ERERTBEAEE
ERREBERBRA—F
KA THHEANTERE
#) & B % 5 YOER O 1R
AHJEH o

R-ZEBE—NF - AE£EH
ZREBEF(ZZT—)N\F:
Hm)BAELEEBETZIRS
BEAEBEKAZ10% °
MZEEPHHEE A HK
AlEERHKRARAF
9> Bl A& 445,124,000
T(ZE—N\&F &) -
39,847,000 L (= & — N\
& ¢ 4 ) K 37,628,000 7T
(Z2E—N\F: &) - AE
ExXxZRFPELAEERR
S FFIBERHEE27()
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which
are organised by business lines and geography. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has identified
the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

—  Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT"): this segment —
represents the Group's provision of terminal, storage,
warehousing and transshipment activities carried
out in Guangzhou, the PRC. As disclosed in note
31, the segment XHIT is classified as discontinued

operations.

— Dongzhou International Terminal (“DZIT"): this —
segment represents the Group’s provision of
terminal, storage and transshipment activities carried

out in Dongguan, the PRC.

—  Shanghai Diyou (“SHDY"): this segment represents -
the Group's trading of oil and petrochemical

products business carried out in the PRC.

The composition of reportable segments of the Group has
changed in the year ended 31 December 2019 following
the acquisition of SHDY (note 26). Reportable segments
are aligned with financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purpose of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

HAFAERIN)
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

0}

—E-NFFH

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in subsidiaries and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade and other payables and
contract liabilities and lease liabilities attributable to
the individual segments and bank loans and other
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated
by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/
(loss) is “profit/(loss) before taxation”, i.e. “adjusted
earnings/(losses) before taxes”. To arrive at “profit/
(loss) before taxation”, the Group's earnings/
(losses) are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning profit/(loss) before taxation, management
is provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income and finance costs.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WA KD ERERE (42)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DWWE(E)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (i) DPHPXEE - BEREEE)
Information regarding the Group's reportable HE-_Z—NhEE_-_=
segments provided to the Group’s most senior —N\F+-—_A=+—H8I1
executive management for the purposes of resource FE - BEIERTAE
allocation and assessment of segment performance SEBITHEEBABNUNSY
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is EBREIEDIHLRITZ
set out below. REEAHRESHERH

FIR T »
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RELEE RIEEER
SHDY DzIT XHIT Total
LEER RMALE MERLE &3t
2019 2019 2018 2019
“EnF R SRR ZEONE ZERRE
§'000 §1000 §000 §1000
r | T Tn W T
(Note)
(H3b)
Reportable segment revenve  HEFBUA 162,790 - 15205 41556 BATT O 1S447 30830 294003
Reportable segment EEEhElEl
proftlos)beforetaation 71/ (8) 2031 - BYT (3409 (32 40 (57020)  (12.269)
Interest income FIEWA 0 - 130 656 1,507 490 13,869 1,146
Finance costs AR 1 - 48410 39,633 2374 6,202 50,79 45835
Depreciation and amortisation &R EH 83 - G448 g5517 - 2003 64501 85540
Reversal of [provision for) HEFE
impairment losses fn/(%%)
~trade receivables -2RRNER - - B4 (3839) - - B (3839))
- prepayments -Efi7E - - - - - 681 - 681
Reportable segment assets NHENTEE 331,800 - 83167 891,547 - 1495866 116597 2,387413
Reportable segment iabiliies WA TEE 90,898 - 736332 768,632 - 892062 827,30 1,660,694
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 MisE - AEBFBER -2
January 2019 using the modified retrospective —hE—F—H#E
approach. Under this approach, the comparative S ETH B E
information is not restated. See note 1(c). A e & B B

B EERI) %16
Sk o RIFEULITE
Lk ER LK E
5l o SHIFE) ©
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WA RDERERE (Z)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2 EIE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) TWREDIBWA ~ B
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EEREBBEZYHIE
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
BRECEER RIEREER h
2019 2018 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE ZE)N\F “Z-\F ZB-nE —T)NF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T S T r T
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(H35) (Miz5) (Bi33)
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue AR & DHUA K
and consolidated revenue — #RAUMA 314,845 14155 13477 152447 328322 294,003
Profit/(loss) whl/ (88)
Reportable segment profit/ AR &ES HRHAI
(loss) before taxation afl/ (BB) 16,194 (53,409) (73,215) 41,140 (57,021) (12,269)
Gain on disposal of HEX HEE
discontinued operations E5 )6 - - 1,307,768 - 1,307,768 -
Unallocated otherincome  AAEEE MU
less other expenses BEMAY 4,205 2,600 - - 4,205 2,600
Unallocated head office and R AE 4K
corporate expenses YNZb (148,223)  (38,707) - - (148223)  (38707)
Consolidated (loss)/profit & AR A
before taxation (B8)/ & (127,824)  (89,516) 1,234,553 41,140 1,106,729  (48376)
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

142

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Elimination of inter-segment
receivables

Unallocated head office and
corporate assets
Others

Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Reportable segment liabilities

Elimination of inter-segment
payables

Unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Note:

&E

AREDHEE
Varkzbanil i
JEWRRIA

ROBCHE K
RABE
Hitp

RAREE
af&
AIREDEAE

VarkizPan=i i
JE A5 R0

ROBCHER S
nEBE

FeRaE

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1

January 2019 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

3

WAR D EB®RE (&)

(b) DEHE(E)

(i) TERED YA ~ B
BERBBEZHRE)

1,165,967 2,387,413
- (752,110)
1,165,967 1,635,303
879,200 303,550
29,323 15,907
2,074,490 1,954,760
827,230 1,660,694
- (752,110)
827,230 908,584
293,540 1,130,558
1,120,770 2,039,142
fiix: AKEER-F

—NFE-A—RBK
BRI B IR
Ve mCEBE
BwEER)F 16
5% o RIFUE X -
HRERILKE
5l o RHIFE) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA TTHIR + BEEHERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDEBHRE (2Z)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEEHE (&)
(iii) Geographic information (i) WEER
The following table sets out information about the TRETE BHREAE()A
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from EERINBRPLAEFZI
external customers and (ii) the Group's property, ARG)VEREEZWE - B
plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land BELiEE - FIEERZME
held for own use, intangible assets, non-current EtiiEs  EBREEEN
prepayments (“specified non-current assets”). The SEmETEMFIE ([T I
geographical location of customers is based on the mREBEE|)MEMEZE
location at which the services were provided. The B BE T [E AR
geographical location of the specified non-current ARG 2 B BKIE - I
assets is based on the physical location of the asset. ERBEEMEEINE

—E-NFFR

EZERFEMERIKIR

Revenues from external
customers

HNERE 1S Z A

The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) ~ H Bl (~EIEEE)

— Continuing operations —FHEIRE T 314,845 141,556
- Discontinued operations — IR IR TS 13,477 152,447
328,322 294,003

Specified non-current assets

EEFRBEE

Hong Kong &5 9,008 1,734
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) B (T BEEH) 767,755 785,056
776,763 786,790

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the FftsE : REBEBEEHALE

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, HEEY I

the comparative information is not restated. See note (BB EREE

1(c). AI)YZE165% - RIE

A% ERER
WARES - K
1c) ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

4 OTHER INCOME 4 Hilkis

Continuing operations: FEREER
Interest income FEU A 19,701 963
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain bE X (&18), W F e (3,039) 2,316
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEX
plant and equipment Bz (B518) e (720) 3,165
Others Hih 6,566 1,158
22,508 7,602
Discontinued operations: B
Interest income FBMA 1,507 490
Government grants BT+ Bh - 305
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment it pd 5t (1,256) (1,676)
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain X (&), WaFa (75) 667
Reversal of other payables BORNATEERRZ
recognised in prior years HAbFERFRIE - 1,100
Others EAth 261 1,556
437 2,442
22,945 10,044
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA TTHIR + BEEHERIN)

5

—T-NEER

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a)

(b)

Note:

Finance costs
Continuing operations:
Interest on bank loans
Interest on lease liabilities

Discontinued operations:
Interest on bank loans

Staff costs*
Continuing operations:
Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, wages and
other benefits
Equity-settled share-
based payment
expenses (note 24(b))

Discontinued operations:

Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans
Salaries, wages and
other benefits

(a)

(b)

B R AR AR

FREEER
RITEFFE
HERABHNE

RIEREg
IRITEFRFE

BIRA*
FRESEXY%
A FE R TR IR
sHEIEH Z 1R
B TER
HAibra
PN i
Befn sz
(K¥zE24(b))

R
A E B FUR IR
FHEIEL Z R
M TER
HAdEH

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated. See

note 1(c).

ERRRARQA

BRB AT 1R

-

BR A A B 1B D E N BR T 01 & IR R E

49,783 39,633
150 -
49,933 39,633
2,374 6,202
52,307 45,835
2,015 1,578
128,420 33,952
8,260 6,800
138,695 42,330
348 2,110
61,002 31,830
61,350 33,940
200,045 76,270

BifaE

AREEER -Z-NF—A—
B R BT B WA 40
RCEBHM B HMERER)F 16
5% o RIFUE TR LREMAL
REFI - RHFEO) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BREAIESEE)

(c) Other items () HtEg

Continuing operations: BFEQEEK
Amortisation 5
—land lease premium —THHEEE - 4,926
- intangible assets — B EE 170 170
Depreciation e
— owned property, =L-L/ES

plant and equipment W5 KR 59,698 60,915
— right-of-use assets*# —(E AR E 8,965 -
Write down of consumable HiHEFE

parts (note 14) (fF3E14) - 2,134
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment B 5 R ORI E S

losses of trade receivables BEE),

(note 16) BB (FizE16) (35,455) 38,353
Auditor’s remuneration %2 M B
— audit services —EE R 1,208 1,478
— review services — &R 380 380
Operating lease charges on RIBCEB 2 2ER)

properties under HKAS 17*# FNTRYERLE

HEER* - 5,717

Cost of inventories FERKA 160,412 -
Discontinued operations: RIS
Amortisation By
— land lease premium —THHEE - 1,318
Depreciation e - 18,705
Provision for impairment losses of AR FIERE

prepayments SRR - 6,872
Auditor’s remuneration %S M B
— other services — E A AR 7S - 980

*  Staff costs include $3,184,000 relating to depreciation of *  BINABREMRSERNERAELE
right-of-use assets (2018: $2,277,000 relating to operating lease FIHTE 3,184,000 ( =& — J\ 4F -
charges on properties), which amount is also included in the 2,277 OOOEiﬁi%%E’Jf\‘%MﬁEEFH
respective total amount disclosed separately above. AR - ZFCAME AR L E R

BHEEMED -

#  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified tOAEEER-_FT-NF-A—HRK
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 REIETTR B AV P RCE B
January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases BmELEAN)E 165 - W FHEF)
which were previously classified as operating leases under e - ARERSERTIRIB( R &5
HKAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 ANE1 7R ERELEENTEER
January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise the BROERERE - R_F—NF
depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy —A-HAVSHREREEER
of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on AEEERFAAFTERNARNZ
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the EREERRORAEEAENE M
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). FEMBEABRERECEHETE

EEMERRX - BIEWIE
BERTTEY - R0 -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA TTHIR + BEEHERIN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

(a) Continuing operations
Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents:

0}

—ENEER

REBBRPZAEH

(a) &

0}

REBRRRPZAERE -

Current tax — PRC

Corporate Income Tax (note ii)
Current tax — PRC

dividend income

withholding tax (note iii)

BIHARR I8 —
R B0 2 ATIS R (T )
BNERT 18 —
B AR B U A
TEFOFR (B wiii)

Notes:

@

(ii)

(iii)

ER

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as the Group sustained a
loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year
(2018: $Nil).

The applicable PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2019 was 25% (2018: 25%).

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
undistributed profits from Guangdong (Panyu)
Petrochemical Storage & Transportation Ltd.
("GD (Panyu)”) of RMB50,741,000 (equivalent to
$59,535,000) (2018: RMB250,482,000 (equivalent
to $282,456,000)) and of which RMB50,741,000
(equivalent to $59,535,000) (2018: RMB159,801,000
(equivalent to $180,199,000)) related to undistributed
profits for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
period ended 28 May 2019 (2018: for the years
ended 31 December 2008 to 2017), have been
declared to its holding company, Guangdong Petro-
Chemicals Company Limited, before the completion
of the transaction mentioned in note 31. Under the
grandfathering treatments, undistributed profits of a
foreign-invested enterprise as at 31 December 2007
are exempted from withholding tax. The amount of
RMB50,741,000 (equivalent to $59,535,000) (2018:
RMB250,482,000 (equivalent to $282,456,000))
was fully paid in March 2019 (2018: February 2019)
together with withholding tax liability of $2,977,000
(2018: $9,010,000).

BERARAT

575 89
B A 3010
3,552 9,099

it
() BE-Z-AFE+-A=1—
AIEFE - & BAIERE
E A AEERERNELE

(ii)

(iii)

18 I LA B TS
REHE(CEZ-NF &)

HE-Z-—NF+=-_A=+—
Eutiﬁ EFIMT% A28
APRBECEMESHKEEA25%
(ZZ—)\F :25%) °

HE-ZT—hF+-A=1+—8
IFFE - BIg(FES)ABETIRH
BEREARAR(E5(FES)))
2RO EFEARES0,741,000
7T (#8% 7459,535,00070 ) (=&
— )\ ¢ AE%250,482,0007E
(88 5 282,456,000 7C) )

EP/\EMSMMOOOE(*E%?
59,535,0007C ) (=& — J\ & :
A R #159,801,000 7 (18 & K
180,199,000 ) ) A#H = —=F
—N\EFE+-A=+—HBILEE
&@ii:%‘i*hiﬂﬂ:Jﬂ\
AIFEZ RS EAMBE(ZF
—\F HE-_ZEZN\FE-
Tt F+-AZ+—HIEF
F) E%Mﬁaﬁﬁﬂ’m%m
[DEIIE RS2y NN =y ap:-I (4
ITHERR TE/IL’E Eﬁx%ﬁm
ERBIT - INEHIRE D ERE
Z2-ZTT+F+-_F=+—H
ZARDEFEEETENE o /8
8¢ 5 A R #50,741,000 7T (48
& $259,535,0007¢ ) (= ZF — )\
& AR#250,482,0007C (1HE
7282,456,0007T ) ) 4 [7 FB H1 X
&7%2,977,0007C( = ZF—)\4F :
9,010,0007T) ER =T —NF=
A(ZE—N\F: Z=—hF=
BZBEEAT -

SR

ot
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6
STATEMENT (continued)
(a) Continuing operations (continued)
(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

mERBERPZAEH(E)

(a) BEEEER(E)

(i) BERBERE 2BIARM
XEEERZHRMOT

Loss before taxation BRELATEE

Notional tax on loss before HBRRE R
taxation, calculated at the rates  EEERER VXK
applicable in the tax BRIAIERAE 2
jurisdictions concerned BENIE

Tax effect of TN E 2
non-deductible expenses M2

Tax effect of non-taxable income  FEBRFIUTA 2 TR L £

Tax effect of unused tax RIERZ
losses not recognised FIEEE
Utilization of tax loss not FREBERERZ
previously recognised TRIAEE

Withholding tax on FE IRIEN
profits distributions

Others Hih
ERHERAS

Actual tax expense

(127,824) (89,516)
(16,627) (19,293)
5,190 13,403
(9,990) (412)
21,939 6,421
- (A7)

2,977 9,010

63 17

3,552 9,099
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Discontinued operations
(i) Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents:

REBRBERPZAEH(E)

(b)

RIEERERK
() HREBBERPZAEHIE -

FEREFITE —
TR ER VEER
a8 (B3 21() 2.31)

Deferred tax — origination and
reversal of temporary differences
(note 21(b) and 31)

Notes:

(i)  No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as the Group sustained a
loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year
(2018: $Nil).

(i)  The applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was 25% (2018:

25%).

(i)

Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense and
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

(136) 5,976

GEE
0

- W

SAEE -+
- PO

SR |
3 T Aoy =+

| oHHF

70y

B | )
Ao L | |

b o [ 2 -1
B
[
A

2
°

>H

-]

(ii)

[
04
=

it

@ -fi
-+

‘H‘
u}:ﬂ{N

| o)

R
WERE

SOAFSIBE DI o B
=

SR
»

o
o O
—

(i) WEARRAEZBEGE
%)/ BAXEET (BB
R ZH R

BrELAT(E1E),
s A (P EE31)

(Loss)/profit before taxation
(note 31)

Notional tax on (loss)/profit
before taxation, calculated at the BERE[E 7 FIRAE K

rates applicable in the tax BFL AT (E51R) SE R
jurisdiction concerned L BERIE

Tax effect of AN H 2
non-deductible expenses B

Tax effect of non-taxable income  FERFUA Z TR f5 2

Tax effect of unused tax RER 2 REFAFIIA
losses not recognised BB B e

Tax effect of reversal of BB AR
previously recognised tax losses ~ FiIAMEIE 2 RIS &

EREBEGER),FX

Actual tax (credit)/expense

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

RERRBEREENEE

(73,215) 41,140
(18,304) 10,479
150 852
- (9,793)
18,018 -
- 4,438
(136) 5,976
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7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

ESME
RIB(E B R RHEDIDE38(NHEL A
A(HBEEFENDER) ROIE 2805

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BEERHNEOT
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2019 —E-NE
Salaries, Share-
allowances Retirement based
Directors' and benefits Discretionary scheme payments
fee in kind bonuses contributions (note)
DY)
E210 = 4:1914 BINGHE AEBEZXH
E=He Bz METEA e (Bt)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Executive directors ~ ${TE%
David An £ - 7,308 80,000 60 - 87,368
Yang Dong B - 1,722 5,000 60 1,333 8,115
Liu Zhijun 858 - 1,190 1,000 60 1,200 3,450
Zhang Lei RE - 1,512 1,600 60 1,200 4,372
Independent BUFHITES
non-executive
directors
Li Wai Keung EX 120 - - - 200 320
Chan Chun Wai, Tony ~ [£iRf8 120 - - - 200 320
Woo King Hang R
(appointed on (RZZ—Nn%F
28 June 2019) ~AZTN\H
BZE) 60 - - - - 60
Hai Hiu Chu ZEH
(resigned on (RZZ-NF
28 June 2019) ~NAZTNHE
BHE) 60 - - - 200 260
360 11,732 87,600 240 4,333 104,265
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7

—T-NEER

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7 EEME(E)
2018 —E-NE
Salaries, Share-
allowances Retirement based
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme payments
fee in kind bonuses  contributions (note)
DA%
E270) =320 RIKGTE] AR T
EE ik B BB 3R (FizE)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive directors #{TEE
David An i - 5,383 - 60 - 5,443
Yang Dong GBS - 1,274 - 60 1,067 2,401
Liu Zhijun ATE - 975 - 60 960 1,995
Zhang Lei K& - 1,209 - 60 960 2,229
Independentnon-  BUFHTES
executive directors
Li Wai Keung FE% 120 - - - 160 280
Chan Chun Wai, Tony FiRfE 120 - - - 160 280
Hai Hiu Chu ZRETR 120 - - - 160 280
360 8,841 - 240 3,467 12,908
Note: s -

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note
1(o)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to
reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity
instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 24(b).

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no amount was
paid or payable by the Company to the directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals set out in note 8 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the years.

ERRRARQA

HERRBEARRBERA R TER L
BREEEE  %ZSEREEERRE
ZRERE R (o) (IDATRAR D R 52
S BETUAE  UREZBREER
EREFERAZRATE  HPEST
AZETHERBAIHOZK -

ZEERMN R 2 FE(BEE 2GRN
Bz BEERSE ) DaEFRREZ[BR
TRt E] | — B P 24(b) P 1R ER -

HEzE-_Z—NaFrR=-_ZFT—N\F+=A
Zt+—ALFE  ARERECHREN
EREY TSl AR &= HMAL
FRERALEBE - LRSI HENBEAEE
SMMABK RS IEABERHE - FA -
MET L TS EENERRBERET
A% o
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8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2018: four) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emolument in respect
of the remaining individual is as follows:

REHMAL
RASELZERFMALY 04
(ZZ2—N\F : BR)ALTHR/ARE
B HMESRME7THE - 58T A
TZHBT -

Salaries and other benefits S M 2 At i e

Share-based payments VARR 7 7 B 2 32

Contributions to M) TE B FGR K
defined contribution retirement plans SHEWEL Z 5K

The emolument of the remaining individual with the highest
emoluments is within the following band:

Nil — $1,000,000 Z£%1,000,0007T
$1,000,001 - $1,500,000 1,000,0017T%
1,500,0007T

770 650
667 160
60 60
1,497 870

BERFHHB T AT ZMEeTEUL TH#HE
A

2019 2018
—®-nE  ZFNF

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AZK
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA TTHIR + BEEHERIN)

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $1,108,620,000 (2018: loss attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of $62,406,000)
and the weighted average of 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares
(2018: 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.
The relevant calculation is as follows:

BREF,(FHE)
BREARBERR(FHE)
BREAREERN,(FHER) HIRE
FRARQ R Z LB R B G
1,108,620,0007T( —Z & — \F : AR
A) 2 i IR AR B E 1 5 18.62,406,000
L) REBETTEBRME TS H
3,732,638,000 % F @Az (== — N\
% : 3,732,638,000/8 L@ ) 5T E -
B@AENT

Profit/(loss) attributable to ZiER R RN

ordinary equity shareholders wF(E518)
— continuing operations —FHEICEET
— discontinued operations — R AT

(131,915) (94,757)
1,240,535 32,351
1,108,620 (62,406)

Basic and diluted BREEAR
earnings/(losses) per share BEEAN(BR)

— continuing operations —FHBICE T

— discontinued operations — R EETE

The diluted earnings/(losses) per share is the same as the basic
earnings/(losses) per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

(3.53) cents 1

(2.54) centsfll

33.23 cents{ll 0.87 centsll

29.70 centsfl (1.67) cents{]

HREBE-T-NER-_F-N\F
TZA=Z+—HLEFEL BT AHE
SBIERzBEEER  WEREEAR
M,/ (B8R BEREARRN,(FE)
IR
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% BENZE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) EREEYER
Interests in
Other leasehold
properties [and held for
leased for  Dock and own Use
ownuse storage Office Motor  Leasehold Construction (notes (b)
Buildings  (note(q) facilies equipment  vehices improvements inprogress  Subtotll and(c)
BEERL
EELH
HfRR i
it & (k)
(H(0) RE  NERE  ARIR R(d)
§000 §/000 §/000 §1000 §1000
i i i i i
Cost: AA:
M3 December  HZE-NE
2018 TR 30940 - 1087657 487 8431 1892 920 1143060 216921 135998

mpactoninial  NISERIAENE
applcation of REEHZ 165

HKRS 16 00te)  ME2(TR) -5 - - - - - 5907 -5
A1 January RIENE

09 -f-8 NM ST 0878 48T 8431 18 920 1148968 216901 1365889
Bichange adjustments £} % (1,189) B (B389 (®9) (18) - (03 s e 3030
Aditions 5 PN 683 1866 83 3 N 7 I 11 -
Disposals il - e B371) - (644) - - B8 - 38
Acquistion of i

aubsiday -HHELT

(note 26) (26 AL - po 83 - - -
M3 December  RZZ-AE

09 TIRST-R A N3 07125 S04 10889 182 547 11876 212175 1370891

Accumulated ZHIER
depreciationand &8 :

amortisation:
A1 January RIENE

2019 -f-f 7760 - 515,491 3401 8,092 1,599 - 536,343 3431 570,720
Bichange adjusiments £/ 5 (199 W (1239 (68) (146) - - () (B4 (13580)
Chargefortheyear ~ £E7E 1416 3937 57,184 485 30 193 - 63,635 477 68,362
Witenbackon ~ RiHE

dlsposals BED - (1415) 47 - (642) - - (2534) - (2534
A3 December  RIE-AETC

2019 B=t-H 8,978 2518 559,869 3818 1624 1892 - 584,699 38,203 622,92
Nethookvalue:  HESE:
M3 December  RZE-AETC

2019 B=t-H 2349 8,505 511,390 186 3,005 - 5477 574017 1713912 747929
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 Y% BERRKEE)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) EEEEYHER(E)
Interests in
Other leasehold
properties held for
leasedfor  Dock and oW Use
ownuse  storage Office Motor  Leashold  Construction (note (b)
Buildings (note(c) faciliies equipment vehicles improvements inprogress  Subtotal and(c)
FtERRZ
BELH
AftER B
LS Z (i)
(W) ; ; R(g)
§1000 §1000
i i
Cost: HA:
A1 January WE-NE
2018 -A-H 51,984 - 186465 8579 19,698 1892 - 196778 306879 2253657
Bichange adjustments (& 385 (2391) - (85352) (283 (81) - - (83853 (14116)  (102969)
Additions HE - - 3014 1291 - - 9210 13575 - 13575
Disposds te - BN 11 O N 1 - - (15 - (15
Redassficatnto ~ EHHENEA
wetsdasifed s BEREZEE
held or sae (H131)
(note 31) (18653) - (681549) 2703 (10289 - - (113193 (h8) (789,039
A3 December — RCE-N\E
2018 L 30940 - 1,087,657 4871 8431 189 9210 1143061 216921 1359982
Accumulated EitiTEREH
depreciation and
amortisation:
A1 January RE-N\E
2018 -§-A 18,147 - 98178 6,231 17874 1283 - 10173 69463 1091176
Bichange adjustments B33 399) - W (214 (149 - N YN V' N 1)
Chargefortheyear ~ FEHTE 1547 - T6%4 611 18 316 - 1980 6204 8864
Witenbackon ~ HHEREE
dlisposals - - (11,688) (1,746) (136) - - (13570) - (13570)

Recassfiatonto  BPENER
wetsdasiedas ElEREZEE
held for ale (F31)

(note 31) (11,041) - (480565) (1.481) (9,079 - - (502,166) (37.902)  (540,008)
A3 December  RZE-\E
2018 +-A=1-A 1,760 - 515,491 3401 8092 1599 - 536,343 343717 570,720

Nethookvalue  BEFE:
M3 December  HZE-NE

2018 i 3180 - 51166 1470 339 2193 9210 606,718 182544 789202
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified BizE : REBER=-Z—NF—A
retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at — BEAKIEET R BBEY
1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to FIERCE AN BWEEL)
leases which were previously classified as operating leases F165% - WHRABRFLEL -
under HKAS 17. See note 1(c). LARERR SE AT IR B B & 5T 4

ADFE17ED B AEEEED
HEPRNEREEE
SMFE1() »
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 Y%  BERSEE)
(b) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the (b) REEEFBEBTHERT M
PRC authorities with lease terms of 50 years. FRMER - FAEE A0 -
The net book value as at 31 December 2018 included an R-E—N\FE+-_A=+—82
amount of $4,741,000 which was disclosed as interests in BREFENEIES EE4,741,000
leasehold land held for own use under current assets. T ERMBEER CFHEER

ZHE T RS T -

(c) Right-of-use assets () FEHAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets TREEERABEESFED
by class of underlying asset is as follows: EEREDFEDTIT -

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—g¥-NE T NF

+t=A=t-8 —A—H
Note $'000 $'000
Mok T T

Interests in leasehold land held for  ¥{EEBRZHE

own use T A RE (i) 173,912 182,544
Other properties leased for own use, 1&ZHTE R AFIBRE)
carried at depreciated cost HiaHEBEEwE (i) 8,505 5,907
Prepayments, carried at RITER AT BRE)
depreciated cost afFoE (iif) 2,165 960
184,582 189,411
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets (continued)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

10 % BERREGE)
(0 EREEEE)
RIBEERNBEMY R
BRI

EREEERAREE
DB EITERX

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset:

Interests in leasehold land held for HEBBRZHEE

own use TH AR 4,727 -
Other properties leased for own use  HE B RHAS Y 3,937 -
Prepayments TR IR 301 -

8,965 -

Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) A& & EF| S (MI7E5(a)) 150 -
Expense relating to short-term REAEE R FERTE A

leases and other leases with RZE—IF+=H

remaining lease term ending on = +—H=ZRIERN

or before 31 December 2019 HEHERTP R 2,430 -

FTRIRB(EE G LR
FNTENRAKEHE
MR E MK & 485 -

Total minimum lease payments for
leases previously classified as

operating leases under HKAS 17 5,717

Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the B

?fl{r

AEEER=Z—NE—A

—T-NEER

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-
of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. After
initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 January
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise
the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

ERRRARQA

—BIRBEETNEA
ML REACEBM IS HRE %
AIYE165% - WHARENLE
&% AR ERRIE(E S
SHEANF 1RO EAL
EHENTRERMS ROER
HEE - NZT—NE—A
—BYSHRAEAEEE
% AEBEEAEEARTE
PR IR B R RS
FREEETE - MIEREL
A EEREERETEE
EMASRAY - RIS
o HEBERTTES - R
MIE1(C) ©
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (continued)
During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
$9,768,000. This amount related to the capitalised lease
payments payable under new tenancy agreements of
$7,962,000 (including $1,139,000 from acquisition of
a subsidiary (note 26)) and prepayments of costal usage
right (note 10(c)(iii)) of $1,806,000.

158

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 17(d) and
20, respectively.

0}

(i)

(iii)

Interests in leasehold land held for own use

The Group was granted with land use rights for a
period of 50 years on leasehold lands located in the
PRC. The Group is the registered user of these lands.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the land use rights from the government authorities
and there are no ongoing payments to be made
under the terms of the lease.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its offices and staff quarters through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 3 years. Lease payments are
usually increased every 2 to 3 years to reflect market
rentals.

Prepayments

Prepayments represent prepayment of costal usage
right located in the PRC. The Group is granted with
costal usage rights for a period of 8 years. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the costal
usage right from the government authorities and
there are no ongoing payments to be made under
the terms of the lease.

10 % - BERKEE)

(9]

ERAEEEE)
FA-FRAEEELAE R
9,768,0007T ° #% & RE SR B HT
HEMZEINE R CHEER
7,962,000 7T ( B 15 W B — [
B B8 A & T 151,139,000 7T ( Fft
7126)) RGEE AETEN KIA
1,806,000 7t (B 5E 10(c)(iii)) B
@a °

HEReRLABELREERE
2B IS 0 BI B R
17(d) 2220

() BEERZEEL RN
A g B g A A R B e 7R
+ 3 88 5 BRSO 4F ) £ i
ERE - AEEARS T
EEMEEA - B
—ERABROR - AR
i R 5 52 R 4
15 000 AR IBE A 2L 3K
EREL -

Hit B REEWE

AEEDEBMEE R
BEMMENERE - N
RERAERETIES -
HE-RMNFRHE2ES3
F-HENKBEE2ES
FLH URRTSHES -

(i)

BNRE

BN FRIBE AR P B H 8
B E AR TEN R o K
SEERESHERE R
HIBHF - EXff—F@/HH
KB ARABTE RBER
BEERE  REBEEEK
FBEEMIAREXAT

(iii)

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA TTHIR + BEEHERIN)

11 PREPAYMENTS

11 FEMARIE

Prepayment for purchase of property, BEMXE - BE&REN
plant and equipment TERTFIE 20,546 -
Prepayment for right-of-use assets FRAEEETEMNFIE
(note 10(c)ii) (FfFEE10(0) i) 2,165 704
22,711 704

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Club memberships

Cost: R

At 1 January m—A—H
Exchange adjustments M 54, 38 B

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8
Accumulated amortisation: S

At 1 January »—HA—H
Exchange adjustments bE W AR

Charge for the year FETE

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8
Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December R+-A=+—8H

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

12 EFEE

3,869 3,893
(11) (24)
3,858 3,869
2,304 2,150
(10) (16)
170 170
2,464 2,304
1,394 1,565

AEREZBHBERGAGABRER

[TTREM]F -
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13 GOODWILL 13 BHE
$°'000
Fr
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—A—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 26) WeiE— I E A 7 (f3E26) 4,729
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZ-NF+-A=1t—H 4,729
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units HAEDEEAEERELEBHR LK
(“CGU") identified according to country of operating and ENHBNNReEFBEU([REE
operating segment as follows: AEEBR)IAT

SHDY - the PRC PEER—hE 4,729 -
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on ReEEBMHAIESEERER
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow BEFESY - ZEFEFERBELR
projection which are prepared on the basis of reasonable STER - THRRE AT R AR RIS
assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market MEEBERFER - B REA12%
conditions. The cash flow is discounted using a discount rate RFTIREIIR - FTAITIRE BRELRT
of 12%. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific KRR T EE RN e & B A
risk relating to the relevant CGU. FrERE R o

160 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA TTHIR + BEEHERIN)

14

INVENTORIES 14 7E
(a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet (a) KEEEABRAZEEERE:
comprise:
Oil and petrochemical products amkatEmR 39,796 -
Oil and petrochemical products in transit  #£3& £ 8 & AL E & 105,118 -
Consumable parts JEFEm 4,240 8,284
149,154 8,284
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) BERMXRITARBZFES
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as BAWWTE :
follows:

Continuing operations: BEKEE
Carrying amount of inventories sold &7 SREE 5(c) 160,412 -
Write down of consumable parts Hi 558 F oo 5(c) - 2,134

160,412 2,134
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY
(a) Investments in subsidiaries
The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary
shares unless otherwise indicated.

15 REMBLARAR -—BZEFEEME
e
(a) REMEAA
UTIERBEHAREMNE
B BERRBEEEAFENN
BRRzFE - RIESBHA
BRIFTH 2 B BRI ST EA -

Attributable equity
Place of Particulars of interest
Place of incorporation/ issued and ke
Name of subsidiary operation establishment paid up capital  Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
it/ ERAR
KEARER Send B 23 BRRRARE B# B IZER
Continuing operations
RHELERY
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company Limited - Hong Kong Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100%  Provision of administrative
BERHLIERAE & 0 20,000,000% senvices
FRALTT AR
Oriental Point International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares - 100%  Inactive
RREARERLR Bk B 1,000,000% TEXH
Timeslink Development Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - Provision of administrative
ERERARLT ; 0 10,0008 senvices
RETHRE

Union Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited  Hong Kong British Virgin Islands 100 shares of US$1 each 100% = Investment holding
ERBRRRIARAR B AERNHE 100RBREE % RERR
Guangzhou Zhongshui Petrochemical The PRC The PRC RMB580,000,000 - 92%  Investment holding

Development Limited H G ARH580,000,0007C RERRK
EMhERS TERERAT
Dongguan Dongzhou International The PRC The PRC RMB555,000,000 - 92%  Provision of terminal, storage

Petrochemical Storage Limited ® EF B H555,000,0007 and transshipment services

("DZ International”) RIEEE - BERERRE
FEMRMER R A RERAR

(TRHER )
Guangzhou Hans Energy Investment Ltd. The PRC The PRC RIMB580,000,000 - 92%  Investment holding

("GZHans") e T AR580,000,0007C REER
BMERRRRERRAT

([BMER])
Shanghai DiYou Industry Co,, Ltd The PRC The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 91%  Trade of oil and petrochemical

("SHDY")) (Note 3) 0 h (Note 2) products
LEEREFARAA ARE50,000,0007 EEDHRALER

(I ek ) (M3) (Rzt2)
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED 15 REMBLAAR —BEREFEBMEE
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued) BE)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) REMBAR(E)
Attributable equity
Place of Particulars of interest
Place of incorporation/ issued and B RE
Name of subsidiary operation establishment paid up capital  Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
i/ EETR
WEAREE Eeny Rz EARRAHE B B IDER
Guanzhou Hans Gongjiao Energy Co,, Ltd. ~ The PRC The PRC RMBS5,000,000 (Note 2) - 60%  Operation of filling station
FAmEEIRERARLA ((REIR) G AERH5,000,0007 Fi52) fEmAnk
Creative Apex International Hong Kong British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
Holding Limited (*Creative Apex') (Note d) &7 ABRIBE IRERAE T REZR
EISERERERD A SRR |) (k)
Discontinued operations
frEegy
GD (Panyu) (Note 5) The PRC The PRC RMB220,000,000 - - Provision of terminal,
BE(ER) M) i HE AR 220,000,000 storage, warehousing and
transshipment services
RUEE 5 BER
LT
Note 1: GD (Panyu) and GZ Hans are sino-foreign equity joint venture MizE1 : B (ES) RENEBBFINE
companies and B A1k, DZ International, EE I and BENE REAL - RMNEE -

SHDY are limited liability companies. The official names of /1
#8A1k, DZ International and 2B L3 are in Chinese and the
English translations are for reference only.

Note 2: The amount represented the registered share capital which is
not fully paid up yet.

Note 3: SHDY was acquired during the year. See note 26.
Note 4: Creative Apex was incorporated during the year.

Note 5: The equity interest in GD (Panyu) was disposed to Guangzhou
Gas Group Company Limited on 28 May 2019. See note 31.

The following table lists out the information relating to (i) GZ
Hans and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
and (i) GD (Panyu) as at 31 December 2018, which are the
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling
interests (“NCI") as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. The
summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

ERIZE bLBERSRERE
ERF] - PIEAL - RMBIF R
ERIRZEREBWATX - &
XEREHRSE -

MizE2 : 2 BIE M AR 2 E AT AR A
K o

MiFE3 © B AUREE » RF5E26 -
FiEEa  BIERIBNFANFEMAKL ©

s REE(EE)REDR-F
—NERRZTNBHETEM
MREEERAT - RHIFE31 -

TERIINEBOHENEBEREWBR
ARZZE-NER-T—-N\F+=A
=T —BEEH R ER(ESR)NZ
T-NF+-A=Z+—HHNBR - %
ERFR_ZE—NFRZE—N\F
‘T A=+ —BAAEBBEEAIE
TR ([FEERER DOWB A
Al e T2 MMIEEREZE R
ER R BIEEENSE -

163



S . ‘—-w -
= i = ol

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R SRR A o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)

15 REMBLARAR -—BZEFEEME
e
REMBAR(E)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a)

2019 2018 2018
—E-N\F —ZT-N\F
$'000 $'000 $'000
T Tz Tz
GZ Hans GZ Hans
and its and its
subsidiaries subsidiaries GD (Panyu)
EMER BEIMNER KR
HIE AR EHH B A7 BE(ERS)
(Note) (Note)
(HI5%) (F3E)
NCI percentage R A Ot 8% 8% 8%
Non-current assets IEREEE 770,255 787,425 -
Current assets RENEE 527,819 412,209 743,756
Current liabilities mEBEE (239,120) (997,401) (378,912)
Non-current liabilities FEREAEE (859,105) (661,948) -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)FE 198,848 (459,715) 364,844
Carrying amount of NCI IR AE R ARE (A 15,988 (36,777) 29,187
Revenue g 314,331 141,556 152,447
Profit/(loss) for the year FrEFl(E8) 14,800 (48,215) 35,164
Total comprehensive income PEN AT 13,673 (47,785) 35,228
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DR IR TR
swAlL (E18) 1,184 (3,858) 2,813
Dividends paid to NCI A FEFE AR A R A
¢S] - - 24,858
Cash flows from operating activities ZZEZEELIRE
mE 25,508 (400,807) 583,031
Cash flows from investing activities & /EEEAIE S
mE (181,807) 885,051 (4,118)
Cash flows from financing activities gt&EFEBELR &
ME (496,299) (101,289) (121,059)
Note:  The subsidiaries have initially applied HKFRS 16 using the M3k . WBARBHEALSITTREREE

L EACE BB IELERDE
1655  RIFULTTE - LLEERD
FEF -

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated.
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED 15 REMBARAR —RBIZEFEEUE
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued) B (&)
(b) Investment in a controlled structured entity (b) RE—BZEHEBHEER

—T-NEER

The Company directly controlled a trust (the “Share Award
Scheme Trust”) that was set up in relation to the Group’s
share award scheme adopted on 15 April 2019 (the “Share
Award Scheme”). Principal activities of the Share Award
Scheme Trust include purchasing, administering and
holding the Company’s shares under the Share Award
Scheme for the benefit of eligible employees (see Note
24(a)). The Company has the power to direct the relevant
activities of the Share Award Scheme Trust and it has the
ability to use its power over the trust to affect its exposure
to returns. Therefore, the Share Award Scheme Trust is

AABEREHIEAREEN =
—hi@ﬁﬂ—ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ’]ﬂxf
Rt &I ([ Bty ZRhat &1 )) B 7
R AEFE(] B BRIt EI1E
FEl) o B BB BIEREM TR
A BRERERN REERE
BERBIZNGEE  BEES
BARRREN (RH24() - &
RAVEAE TR 2R 85T
MHRRR B M N HRESER A
EFENENTZEEDR - Fit -

considered as a controlled structured entity of the Group. i B B S e R R AR R
W ZIEH ST EE -

ERRFEERAT

165



Notes to the Financial Statements

B R SRR A o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EZREMEWTE

Trade debtors, net of loss allowance R EERENE S
FEUERTK 95,513 18,257
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1AL AT EH)
TREE 95,513 18,257
Prepayments and other receivables TR RIE K B At FE R OR 78,550 6,650
174,063 24,907

The amounts of the prepayments and other receivables
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense after more
than one year are $1,316,000 (2018: $598,000). Apart from
these, all the other trade and other receivables are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance, is as follows:

R —FR KOS ERABR 2B
1< 5K I8 K H 4t fE U 5RIE 21,316,000
JL(=—Z— )\ : 598,0007T) ° BRIt
2O BT E S R E MBS
TEHER —FRRE S ERAER -

(a) ERERZAT
REER  REXZRHREN
BB ESRUER(GTAR
5 R EMRYRIR) 2 Rk DT
LI

Within 1 month —@AA 91,459 17,491
Over 1 month but within 2 months —EA K EEREAR 1,124 470
Over 2 months but within 3 months RIME A A E1BE=1E AR 34 8
Over 3 months but within 6 months =EANREESREAA 2,896 288

95,513 18,257

Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available
to major customers with well-established trading records.
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to
its trade customers. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors are set out
in note 27(a).

B ARERME © R —K&
ERTARFRIREHIIER
F - AEBEGBETESEF 530
RZBHRY - BEAKEEER
REEFRYERELE ZEER
2 — AR BN ME27@)

166 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA TTHIR + BEEHERIN)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 16 EBEZRHMEWIREGE)
(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired (b) IFEBMENE S EWERR
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of FNE S EWIRFAREE B RE
trade receivables during the year is as follows: BREFHIT :

Balance at 1 January R— A—B &R 38,927 -
Amounts written off during the year ESUVNE K= E O E] (3,358) -
(Reversal of)/provision for FERFERRREREE

impairment losses recognised (B[E), B

during the year (35,455) 38,353
Exchange difference b ZERE (114) 574
Balance at 31 December Rt+—_A=+—8

IR - 38,927

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

168

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired (continued)

At 31 December 2018, receivables that were past due
mainly represented an amount of $38,927,000 due from
a customer (“Customer A") that was in financial difficulty.
To reclaim the trade debtor, the Group filed an application
to the court in the PRC and the court granted the Group a
lien on Customer A’s goods stored at the storage facilities
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015.
Subsequently, the goods were sold by the court through
an auction in 2016 and the related sale proceeds of the
goods (“the auction proceeds”) are being held under the
custody of the court since then.

In June 2018, the Group has filed a written request to the
court for releasing the auction proceeds to the Group.

In December 2018, forced execution processes in respect
of the auction proceeds and distribution of Customer A’s
assets were initiated and applied by the first mortgagor
of Customer A, a third party. The court has accepted this
application. Based on the foregoing and considering the
complexity of the forced execution processes and the
number of related creditors involved therein, the directors
reassessed the recovery of receivables due from Customer
A during the year ended 31 December 2018. The directors
were of the opinion that the expected credit losses of
the amount due from Customer A as at 31 December
2018 amounting to $38,927,000 was necessary to be
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018.

In November 2019, the court issued the final allocation
plan for the auction proceeds and in December 2019,
the court released first part of the auction proceeds. As a
result of the new development in the court proceedings,
additional storage and warehousing income of $8,871,000
(note 3) and interest income of $11,997,000 (note 4)
were recognised.

16

E5 RHEMEWREGE)

(b)

WEEENE S ERRR(Z)

RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—8"
BN RETIERERE—EE
YBREsZF((EFR])2E
W K18 /438,927,000 T ° AU
EESEBER  #E-_T—H
F+-_A=+—HILFE  &&
BB P BER IR R - A
RERZPBETAEERE S
FEREREBRFHEEE M
HERBERE -Eig RZZT—X
FREERKERRBELE -
BERABEESmERIE(I1RE
FriS 518 ])) BILBRERRE ©

R-ZE—N\FXA AEEEM
FERIEREE AR - BRAAE
BENEMEHA -

R—T—NF+=A8 HEMSE
FIERDREFFEEMNS G
TRRFHREFPFE—HMMAE
ZH)ERIEE - ERBES
R o R XTI R ER
BIBITIE 7 8RR R 1 LA IR B AR
REOEEERANAZ 52
BTGB E - \E+ A
=t+—HLEFERKEFFRIE
ZallkE  BEERAEFERN
(2T N\F+-_A=+—H
IFFEBRR=_E—\F+=A
=t+—HEKREFFHIEZES
{ZEE181%38,927,0007T °

RZZE—NF+—A ' AR
ERSRIEE LSRR D BCATE
BNy S e S 97 §==E i1
HMEBHUE - BRERTAR
FHRE  HEERBINTERE
EE 4R A.8,871,0007T (Fff5E3) K A
B A11,997,0007C (Hi7E4) »
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired (continued)
In addition, related impairment losses of $35,455,000
(note 5(c)) were reversed. The unrecoverable part of the
previously impaired trade debtor of $3,358,000 was
written off accordingly.

In March 2020, the court released the remaining part of
the auction proceeds.

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

ESRHEMEERRIEE)
(b) MMAENEZEURMR(E)

LA - HE B8R (B B8 35,455,000
JC(MIFES(c)) B E - E e
BR SR AT Y Bl 384> 3,358,000 7T
TEIE IS o

R-ZZB-TFE=F - EREHA
BTSRRI

REkAEEERERAMBRSRE

(a) RERREFEEBBEVE:

Cash at bank and on hand RITEARRE

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

974,510 881,071
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW

INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of loss/(profit) before taxation to cash
(used in)/generated from operations:

(Loss)/profit before taxation
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operations
— Gain on disposal of discontinued
operations
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation
Amortisation of land lease premium
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment of prepayments
Write down of consumable parts
Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

(Reversal of)/provision for
impairment of trade receivables

Gain on disposal of discontinued
operations

Exchange differences

Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other

receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

and contract liabilities

B BA(B51A) /i
— SR T
— i B R
L HE £ T

g

AT EEEHREZ
FLEWA
BEARA

7E

T BEEE

By AEH

BHZIEE(E

S

I EE
B Hi

HENE B
BE2ER/
(k2)

53 EEEOAE
(2E)/ BiE

e g
2158

X £

HBES IR

e (EI)/ B

H5 B AR
I8 (890,

5 REfAS
FUBRAL
BN

Cash (used in)/generated from operations && %55 (F1H ),/ Fifs
IH ¢

RE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. Previously, cash payments
under operating leases made by the Group as a lessee of
$5,717,000 were classified as operating activities in the
consolidated cash flow statement. Under HKFRS 16, except
for short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low
value assets and variable lease payments not included in
the measurement of lease liabilities, all other rentals paid
on leases are now split into capital element and interest
element (see note 17(c)) and classified as financing cash
outflows. Under the modified retrospective approach, the
comparative information is not restated. Further details on
the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note

1(c).

170

17

REeRBRESERERHEMRSRE

')

(b) BRBLATEIR ~ORF)) R K
(FiR)/ FBREZHIR

(127,824) (89,516)
(73,215) 41,140
1,307,768 -
(9,890) (1,453)
52,307 45,835
68,663 79,620
- 6,244
170 170
- 6,872
- 2,134
8,260 6,800
1,976 (1,489)
(35,455) 38,353
(1,307,768) -
2,245 (593)
(66,005) 244
(10,231) 21,157
47,081 92
(141,918) 155,610
Wik AEEER_Z—HE—A
—HERAKET BN EY
5 FICE B B 76 3 Al
F16% - WHBEF DL -
LURER BT AR B E B & 5
R )FN7E D E AL ER
EMEEMSRNERES
ERMEAE AEEIEA
AALARBEEREE
H A IR & 14 3Kk5,717 000707
GARSRER DB ARKYE
ES) o IBE(E B B E
BIYE16% - R HE R
»OEEEEEAENKE
ABHAEN R AEER
ETE AR NHE
EHEHNFRBERRD R
FIE D (REE17() ¥
SEARMEB SR o BIF
BETHERE  HBEH
Ry &EY - BRBEZ(EE
PR ER)E 16F M P2
HE ZEE BRI (O) °
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW 17 RERBELESEEEREMBELSRE

INFORMATION (continued) BER(4E)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () MEITDELEZEMBEHIEK
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREFNAEEERMERSESE
from financing activities, including both cash and non- ZEBEEES FHE BREREES R
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities R B ETHELZE
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash BEEFRRTHRSREIRRR
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash EREBRAEBGRERESRE
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. ROBEMETHIIELEZRSE
mEZAE -
Amounts due
to related Lease
parties Bank loans liabilities
FERERBARE BITEX HERR
$'000 $'000 $000
T r T
(Note 22) (Note 19) (Note 20)
(Fitzr22) (FzE19) (Fitzt20)
At 31 December 2018 (Note) RZE-N\E
TZA=t—R(HE) 205,835 879,934 - 1,085,769
Impact on initial application NI EREEIT
of HKFRS 16 (Note 1(c)) BERR)F 1654
g2 (1) - - 5,907 5,907
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—F—H 205,835 879,934 5,907 1,091,676

Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREHENED :

Proceeds from new bank loan MBTERFENE - 749,896 - 749,896
Repayment of bank loans BBRTER - (908,068) - (908,068)
Advances from a related party R B3 A 236,369 - - 236,369
Repayment to a related party [BEBHATE (232,002) - - (232,042)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEREEREFEES - - (150) (150)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENRERSEAES - - (4,334) (4,334)
Interest paid BRFE - (51,934) - (51,934)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BIER&HEREA 4,827 (210,106) (4,484) (209,763)
Exchange adjustments B HE (1,189) (19.486) (32) (20,707)
Other changes: Hib 25
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into Mz HEE Y

new leases during the year BEAEEMN - - 7,962 1,962
Decrease in lease liabilties from early FRRARREER

termination of leases during the year HEBERD - - (1,371) (1,371)
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) EEEGESE) - 52,157 150 52,307
Proceed from disposal of discontinued HER LR

operations &R 70,933 - - 70,933
Total other changes Hi2Eas 70,933 52,157 6,741 129,831
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-n%

+-A=t-8 280,406 702,499 8,132 991,037
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW 17 RERBELSEEEEREMBELSTRE

INFORMATION (continued) &ER(E)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () MEETHEEZEEBHIRE)
activities (continued) . _

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the MIEE - $%Eﬁ§‘i§*‘n¢fﬂ
modified retrospective method and adjusted the opening —H %Fﬁff*&fﬂ% ETE"J%?@?X i
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities fﬁg$<§7ﬁﬂﬁ%$& E‘fﬁw
relating to leases which were previously classified as %16?/% ) %ﬁ%i?ﬂﬁu%:
operating leases under HKAS 17. See notes 1(c) and Hﬁa@jﬁ il 1‘&?%((%5‘/%%5
17(0). ERDENT R B RKEE

ENHEMPRNEES
& o R0 R17(b) °
Amounts due
to related Lease
parties Bank loans liabilities
FERAE T 3R RITER
$'000 $'000
T i v
(Note 22) (Note 19) (Note 20)
(Fi3k22) (FfzE19) (Fi3E20)
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-F—H 265,094 986,964 - 1,252,058
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSRENEE
Advances from a related party — BB A B 30,465 - - 30,465
Repayment of bank loans/to [BRSBIT/ —2H8s
arelated party B (88,927) (61,656) - (150,583)
Interest paid BRME - (45,940) - (45,940)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BER & RELEA (58,462) (107,59) - (166,058)
Exchange adjustments fE R (797) (45,269) - (46,066)
Other changes: Hit@E
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) EERGRER) - 45,835 - 45,835
Total other changes EEHAG - 45,835 - 45,835
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\$+ZA
=t-H 205,835 879,934 - 1,085,769
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (continued)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement
for leases comprise the following:

17 RERBSEEHRERAMRERE
ER(E)
(d) HERESRHLH
AR RERNEENRES
SEER TSR :

PAONKS]

—ZE—)\F

$'000

FT

(Note)

(BaE)

Within operating cash flows BREEREREA 2,430 5,717
Within investing cash flows BRIZEREREN 1,806 -
Within financing cash flows BARMERESREN 4,484 -
8,720 5,717

Note:  As explained in the note to note 17(b), the adoption of
HKFRS 16 introduces a change in classification of cash
flows of certain rentals paid on leases. The comparative
amounts have not been restated.

These amounts relate to the following:

BaE © SEnPEE17(b) B SERRAE -
A BB SRS 2ER)DE
1653 AETENHERS
BeERENEEE - HES
BEEARTTFED -

ZETRETIAR

Lease rentals paid ENHEEES 6,914 5,717

Prepayment for right-of-use assets EREEEANIE
(note 11) (F=ET1) 1,806 -
8,720 5,717

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

173




Notes to the Financial Statements

B R SRR A o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTEHIR + BHERHERRSIN)

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

EZRAMENRIRENEE

Trade creditors B SREMRR 49,862 -
Contract liabilities BHAEE 31,333 -
Other creditors and accruals A ENERSREETRER 47,057 51,100

Consideration received from disposal of HE B AR
a subsidiary (Note) BB (B EE) - 890,206
128,252 941,306

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had
consideration received in advance from Guangzhou Gas
Group Company Limited relating to disposal of GD (Panyu) of
$890,206,000 according to a sale and purchase agreement
and this amount was secured by certain of the Group’s
interests in leasehold land held for own use with net book
value of $4,549,000 as at 31 December 2018 and 92% of
GD (Panyu)’s equity interest with the corresponding issued
and paid up capital of RMB202,400,000 as an indemnity
arrangement for Guangzhou Gas Group Company Limited as
the transaction was not completed as at 31 December 2018.
The transaction was completed on 28 May 2019. See note 31.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, all the trade and other
payables are expected to be settled or recognised as income
within one year.

As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade creditors
(which are included in trade and other payables), based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

e HEz=_2—N\F+=-_A=+—H
HFE  AEEREEEHER
HEBF(ES) MBEMNREE
EARE QAR FKREHNBERARER
890,206,000 © &R JIAARE
BEETFHEAR2AE L AR
(R=ZE—NF+=-A=+—H8K
% E 4&4,549,0007T) & 85 (&K
BIM2 %M (HED BT RE
AR 2 A R #202,400,0007T ) 1EHK
B EBUNBNRAEEERAR]
BIBZANBELZE  REARS
R-E-NE+-_A=+—HBEE
TR R BERE—HERA
ZHNBEK o RHIFE3 ©

RZE—NEFER-_ZTE—N\F+_A
Zt—H FBEESREMERMER
FEHR —FRNBESIERBRA -

REER - WEZEHIIRNENE
F(EAZ SR EMENED) MR
DT -

Within 1 month —BAR

49,862 -
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18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 18 EZRHMEAERRRENEEE)
LIABILITIES (continued)
Contract liabilities arnas
The Group's receives part of the contact value as a deposit from BEFZERHRALERGHE - K
customers when they sign the oil and petrochemical products EEREFPISHDALEBEEAK
agreement. This deposit is recognised as a contract liability until ® RNEPEEREKRERA @ ZE
the customer takes possession of and accepts the products. The BEBARABANEE B TITRERE
rest of the consideration is typically paid according to the credit BEETFTEPHEEERIEX - 128
terms granted to the customer. The amount of the deposit was SRIZERERERPERMET ©

negotiated on a case by case basis with customers.

Movement in contract liabilities EHEEES

At 1 January m—HA—H - -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of M EFEEIZSERN
receiving deposits from customers BB BEEM 31,333 -
At 31 December Hnt+—-—A=+—8 31,333 -
19 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 19 B|ITERRHMEE
(a) The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans and (a) HITERKREMEEREEND
other borrowings is as follows: T -

Current liabilities RBAE

Bank loans |aE® 50,021 ! 90,162
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Bank loans IRITEN 652,478 789,772

702,499 879,934
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19 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 19 RITERRHMEEE)
(b) At 31 December 2019, the bank loans and other (b) RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—8"
borrowings were repayable as follows: HITERREMEEEN T
fREE

Bank loans (secured) RITER(EER)

Within 1 year or on demand R—F sk fE E K 50,021 90,162
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFER 63,358 118,694
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREREFA 277,887 534,124
After 5 years AFE 311,233 136,954
652,478 789,772

702,499 879,934

(c) At 31 December 2019, the Group had banking facilities (00 R=E—NFt+=-—A=+—8"
totalling $702,499,000 (2018: $879,934,000) which were AEBZRITHEBRES H
secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant and 702,499,0007C ( =& — J\ £ :
equipment with net book value of $383,217,000 (2018: 879,934,0007T ) © JILAARE
$645,589,000) and interests in leasehold land held for BR M )% 18 4 383,217,000 ( =
own use with net book value of $173,912,000 (2018: =T — \ 4 : 645,589,0007T) 2
$210,671,000). The banking facilities were utilised to the Y - BEMERERERFES
extent of $702,499,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 173,912,000 ( =ZZF — N\ F :
$879,934,000). 210,671,00070) 2B 1EEB A2

ME L RERE - RZF
—h&E+=-A=+—18 c2&aH8
ZRITRVE R E A702,499,000
7T (ZZF — /\4F : 879,934,000
JL) °
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20 LEASE LIABILITIES
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the current and
previous reporting periods and at the date of transition to

20

HERE

TRIVRASER A RS HEMBE
BERERERNBREE(EBH R
HFERDE 165 A HNEEREHR

HKFRS 16: BRE DR EIR
At 31 December 2019 At 1 January 2019 (Note)
R-E-h&E+=-A=+—-H8 R=Z-h&E-—A—B(HH)
Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHE REHE =EHE =EHRE
NRRE g L 5 ERE fisraa%a
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T
Within 1 year —&FR 5,246 5,428 3,538 3,645
After 1 year but within 2 years —E&EMRER 2,665 2,713 2,074 2,108
After 2 years but within 5 years RE&ERER 221 223 295 311
2,886 2,936 2,369 2,419
8,132 8,364 5,907 6,064
Less: total future interest B RRF B FX
expenses P (232) (157)
Present value of lease liabilities FAE & &HRE 8,132 5,907

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. Further details on the impact of the transition to
HKFRS 16 are set out in note 1(c).

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

M AEEER-_Z—AFE—HA—H
RSB WAV ERCE
B EWmERERD)E 165, - WA
BEYES - DAERERIRIB(E
BEETERDE TR AL EH
EMHERSRNEEEE B
BREE(EBMBREERN)E
165 ENE L FE MM
1(c) °
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 21 HRAEBEABRDZAEN
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (a) ZKEEEABRZRBBIIEE
represents:

PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI EFTSH 1,481 86
PRC dividend income withholding tax AR BRI A B A FE 0E - 9,010
1,481 9,096

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERAECHEEERER:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities FARGEEEBBRTERL
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the EERE(EE),/ BEAKID

movements during the year are as follows: REZSHERAT :

Depreciation
allowances

178

Future
benefits of

tax losses
BlEAEEZ
RAHF &
$'000

Fr

in excess of
the related
depreciation
HEHERETE
HiTERE
$'000

Fr

Deferred tax arising from: EREBIERE :
At 1 January 2018 R=Z—\F—H—H (6,588) 3,672 (2,916)
Exchange adjustments [Nk 59 (148) (89)
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(b)) st AIBZEK (FiFiF6(h)) 6,529 (553) 5,976
At 31 December 2018 RZT—N\F

+=-A=+-H - 2,971 2,971
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—F—H - 2,971 2,971
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 31) HE—HEHEBAR

(PMHE31) - (2,829) (2,829)
Exchange adjustments B 5 % - (6) (6)
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(b)) &t AB#EE (KizE6(b)) - (136) (136)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-N%F

+-A=+—H - - -
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21

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

(9]

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(p), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately
$613 million (2018: $537 million) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries will
expire in 5 years after the relevant tax losses were incurred
while tax losses for the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong
do not expire under the current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

In PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-invested enterprise
to its foreign investors are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10% unless reduced by treaty (5% for foreign
investors who are registered in Hong Kong provided
they meet certain criteria). Under the grandfathering
treatments, undistributed profits of a foreign-invested
enterprise as at 31 December 2007 are exempted from
withholding tax.

At 31 December 2019, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to $1,501,000. Deferred tax liabilities of $75,000 have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it has been determined that it is probable that the
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2018, all profits of these subsidiaries
were distributed under the transaction (note 31) and
withholding tax was recognised in this regard (note 6(a)).

22 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

Apart from the non-current amounts due to related parties
of $167,448,000 (2018: $Nil) which are unsecured, interest-
fee and repayable after one year, the amounts due to related
parties are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one

—E-NFFH

year.

ERRFEERAT

21

me

(9]

(d)

BEERBERPZHAEHR(E)

RERZEEREEE :

RIEM T (p) T8k 2 S ETEUR -
MR EBERERRTAAIERE
BARLIS RETE R B FE R B s A
LURSE B R 1E - AEBKRAR
2 HEEIEYN6.13E T (=
— )\ : 537870 ) ERIELR
HEE - NEE/MF BB AR
MRS EESER B EERE
HRSFERES - MBERITR
IR - AREBERBENNEA
AR 1B PR A o

AERZELEHRRE
RAE - BREE e AR D B
Sh - SNEREXNEHBIMEES
Z R BIRE AN 0% TRHI B (i &
REBEMTE ATEETIRE
MM EE - BIR5%) - R
REIBUERBIT - SMERER—
ETHEFT_A=+—HZRD
Ao M E R R B TRHI -

RZZE—-—hF+=-A=+—8"
R DRM B R REF B
B4 %8 51,501,0007T ° Ik
BN RZSREEFVBERT
RES A HRIBRRIELETIES
1&75,0007T * B AR FHEHRZ
EWB AR EBR R EETE
RA AARRETEDREF]

RZE-N\E+A=+—8"
ARBENIKRRZ S (HE31)ET
ZEMBARNMABEEN - WEh
It FERRIEINR (M EE6(a)) °

22 FE{SEEE SRR

BRTEEE 2ERAR—F%&
BEaEMEE 5 IERERE
167,448,000 (—Z T — \F : &)

o -
B

FEfRERSE 5 2 IR R EIEA - %

AN—FREE -
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23

24

180

HAFAERIN)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of
its staff to the retirement scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contribution under the scheme. The Group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with this scheme beyond the annual contributions
described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(a) Share Award Scheme
The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on
15 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”) for the purpose of
retaining participants and encouraging them to make
contributions to the growth and development of the
Group.

23

24

BERKEF
AEBEGETEHBARZEE /T
B iR e BIR B IR KR AIAT
BZRE - AREAREBT 2%
B TEALRE TR X BB DR
ZIRRETEI R - Bz R IKE M ET &l
meE - NEE 2B ETRREZL
BEH TR 2K o B L BFHR
S RERERZAT B RSB TT
EEE M E AR REALE -

AEETREEERRGHER 2
g8 - REEFBRHIEATE S RS
RAEBHERTBERAE([BEDF
g]) - BB ERBILXE
ANEEZ RERFEAFE - RIFE
BEitE BEXREEAEAKESR
BRAWAZ5% AT EIFE R - H
LA A BRI A 30,0007 B < [Al5T
EEL 2 BN TR S -

DEREEZRORS

(a) REPEBEE
RRBRZZB-NFOA+RHE
([ER& B H ) R P fn 52 B &t
2 EEBREZSEANRTBES
AEEORERBERELER
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(a) Share Award Scheme (continued)

—E-NFFH

Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme (the
“Scheme Rules”), the Board of Directors (the “Board”)
may grant an award to anyone (other than any excluded
participant) who is an employee, director, or consultant of
any member of the Group for participation in the Share
Award Scheme and determine the terms of the award.
The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration
of the Board in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The
Board may engage one or more trustees to administer the
Share Award Scheme as the Board thinks fit. The Share
Award Scheme will terminate on the tenth anniversary of
the Adoption Date or such earlier date as the Board may
determine. The Board shall not grant any further awards if
such award would cause the aggregate number of shares
underlying such award and all other outstanding awards
(taken together with all unvested awarded shares granted
under the Scheme Rules) to exceed 5% of the number of
issued shares at the date of grant. The Board may, from
time to time remit funds to the trustee for the purposes of
the Share Award Scheme, and such money will form part
of the trust fund. The Board may instruct the trustee to
purchase the number of shares underlying the award from
the open market (either on-market or off-market) and the
trustee shall hold such shares on trust for the participants
until they are vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
remitted in total of HK$20,000,000 to the trustee for the
purchase of shares of the Company pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme. On 15 April 2019, the trustee purchased
a total number of 58,590,000 shares on the market at
a total consideration of approximately HK$16,581,000
for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme. As at 31
December 2019, no grant of awards has been made
under the Share Award Scheme.
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 24 DREREEZRORZ(E)
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (b) HERFESHE

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 28 December
2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the
Company to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract resources that are available to the Group and to
provide the Company with a means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to such persons who contribute or may bring
benefit to the Group. The Share Option Scheme remains
in force for a period of 10 years from adoption and
expires on 27 December 2022.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may at their discretion grant options to
any eligible participant including any employee, director,
consultant, agent, business affiliate, business partner, joint
venture partner, strategic partner of the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company, or any supplier or provider
of goods or services to the Company or any subsidiaries
of the Company, to take up options at a consideration
of $1 per each option grantee to subscribe shares of the
Company, as may be determined by the directors from
time to time to subscribe for the shares of the Company.
The options vest on 31 May 2019 and are then exercisable
from 30 August 2019 to 29 August 2028. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

On 30 August 2018, 65,000,000 options and 62,500,000
options were granted to directors and employees of the
Group by the Company under the Share Option Scheme
respectively. The directors estimated the weighted average
fair value of each option at the grant date to be $0.12.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
$8,260,000 (2018: $6,800,000) were recognised in the
consolidated income statement (note 5(b)) for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)
No share option was granted to or exercised by any of
the directors and employees during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

0]

(i)

—T-NEER

The terms and conditions of the grants that
existed during the year are as follows:

Number of

instruments
TAHH

Options granted to directors 65,000,000
-on 30 August 2018
BRTEEBkE
-RZE-N\ENA=T1H
Options granted to employees 62,500,000
-on 30 August 2018

BTEE 2 BkiE

-RZE-\FNA=TH

Total 85+

The number and weighted average exercise
prices of the share options are as follow:

Weighted
average
exercise

TR

Outstanding at the beginning MEFRITE

127,500,000

24 LESEEZROXS(E)

(b) HBRAESEI(E)
BE_ZT-NAFR-_FT-N\F
T-A=t—RLEE IEE
g%%&@%%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
E )

FRAFBRERL 2K
MRAREFMTE

0}

Contractual
life of options
BEIRES QR

Vesting conditions
FBIRIT

100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years

RZZE-NFHhA=1—H 106
2HEE

100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years

RZE-NFRA=+—H 106

YRR

(i) MBRHE BB KT
TEEDT :

Weighted
average
exercise

price
illi
17 E

Number of
options

Number of
price options

il

R ERE
2018
—F)N\F

BRERE
2019

—B-hEF

of the year $0.236 127,500,000 - -
Granted during the year RERE L - - $0.236 127,500,000
Forfeited during the year RERZK $0.236  (2,000,000) - -
Lapsed during the year RENEKK $0.236  (3,000,000) - -
Outstanding at the end RERKITE

of the year $0.236 122,500,000 $0.236 127,500,000

The options outstanding at 31 December 2019 had
an exercise price of $0.236 (2018: $0.236) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.7
years (2018: 9.7 years).

ERRRARQA

RZZT—-—AF+=A
=+ —BRRITENER
EITFEER0236IT(ZF
—\%F :0.23670) R INEF
HRBENBRRSIF(ZF
—\F : 9.7F) -
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)

(iii)

184

Fair value of the options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
options granted is measured by reference to fair
value of the options granted. The estimate of fair
value of options granted is measured based on a
binomial model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model.

Fair value at measurement date $0.12
Vesting period 9 months
Share price $0.236
Exercise price $0.236
Expected volatility 54%
Option life 10 years
Expected dividends Nil %
Risk-free interest rate 2.17%

The expected volatility is based on statistical analysis
of weekly share prices of the Company over the past
years immediately preceding the grant date. The
calculation is based on the assumption that there
is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the whole life of the options and
the historical volatility of the shares of Company.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

24

DEZEEZRORES(E)

(b)
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25 EBEXK#FE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) ERARBD2EH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBRE = S EKE D B9
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HEAREHAE RN R AR
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes BERK - ARFFERSANED
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s DIRNEEHO RO EE)F
individual components of equity between the beginning 1EEFNT -

and the end of the year are set out below.
The Company VNN

Treasury
sharesheld  Share-based
Share Share  under share compensation  Accumulated
capital premium  award scheme reserve losses
BERD
L RE ]

R
R RInRE EERG ROZMEE 2R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T 1 S I
(Note 24(a)  (Note 24(b))
(Fistda)  (BissE24()

Balance at 1January 2018 ~ R=ZF-N&
-A-AzEs 373,264 710,477 - - (557,359) 526,382

Changes in equity for 2018:  —B-N\FHEHEE

Loss and total comprehensive ~ EREER2AE

income for the year hearits - - - - (14,580) (14,580)
Fquity settled share-based WEREEZ
payment transaction ®iAz5 - - - 6,800 - 6,800
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=F-N\&
and 1 January 2019 TZA=1+-Rk
“E2-hfF
-B-Bis 373,264 710,477 - 6,800 (571,939) 518,602

Changes in equity for 2019:  —F-NEEELE :

Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREFIR2E

income for the year figavat= - - - - 480,120 480,120
Treasury shares held under RERGHREE

share award scheme EBRERRD - - (16,581) - - (16,581)
Equity settled share-based IEREEY

payment transaction R 5 - - - 8,260 - 8,260
Lapse of share options BIRELK - - - (360) 360 -

Balance at 31 December 2019 R=Z-h%E+=R
=+-Rz&s 373,264 710,477 (16,581) 14,700 (91,459) 990,401
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 25 EBEXRREEBE)
(b) Share capital (b) B
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZEREE K]
‘000 $'000
T Fr
Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: SREE0.10TZLE
’®
Authorised: SET
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 N-ZE—-NER
—ZE-NFt+ZA
=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EZETRHE -
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 RN-ZE—N\EK
“Z-NFt+ZA
=+—H 3,732,638 373,264
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive BB A AR EE
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled KBRS - WHEERAQFE
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All B LERER—ZRERR A
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's TRREANRFHREEFEA
residual assets. RS HIAL ©
() Nature and purpose of reserves () REUHERAR
(i) Share premium (i) MROEE
The application of the share premium account is RO EEFRNEAXFS
governed by the Companies Law (Revised) of the BEARNE(IER]EE -

Cayman Islands.

(i) Special reserve (i) 455 E
The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition FRARBA _ZTZMF
in December 2004. TZAMRWEMESE
(iii) Translation reserve (iii) XZ#E
The translation reserve comprises all foreign RGFEERIEBREREIN
exchange differences arising from the translation of SN TS BT IS R E A
the financial statements of operations outside Hong B P B INE Z5E o (@ T
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with RIEHT 1 (O FT R & R BR
the accounting policy set out in note 1(t). BRI o
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(0

(d)

—E-NFFH

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Statutory reserve
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises, a portion of the
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC is required to transfer to the statutory reserve.
The amounts of profits transferred to the statutory
reserve are determined by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries according to the articles of
association. The reserve is restricted to use and is not
available for distribution.

(v) Treasury shares held under share award scheme

Treasury shares held under share award scheme
represents the shares purchased by the Group that
are not yet granted to directors and employees of the
Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(o)(ii). The consideration paid for
the purchase of the Company'’s shares is reflected as
a decrease in the equity of the Company.

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve represents
portion of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments

in note 1(o)(ii).

Distributability of reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium and accumulated
losses (net of treasury shares held under share award
scheme) which in aggregate amounted to approximately
$602 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018: $139
million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum
and articles of association and provided that immediately
following the payment of distribution or dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association, distributions shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the
share premium account, of the Company.

ERRFEERAT
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

188

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings), less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital comprises all components of equity,
plus net debt.

During 2019, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2018, was to maintain the net debt-to-capital ratio
at an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group will consider and may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The Group is at net cash position as at 31 December 2019
and 2018.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

25 BAERRFHE)

(e)
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26 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated
5 November 2019, the Group, acquired 99% equity
interests in Shanghai Diyou Industry Co., Ltd. (“SHDY"),
a company established in the PRC at a cash consideration
of RMB10,265,335. The acquisition was completed on 10

December 2019.

The goodwill reflects synergistic effect with the Group's future
filling station business and provision of terminal and storage
facilities and services for liquid petrochemical products business
as Group's strategy is to extend its principal business. None of

26

W BB B A
BEBRA-ZT—NF+—ARHEN
BEEWE AEBWE LSaREE
BRERAR ([ EEBE]) (RPEH
IR AE]) HI99% Ak HE - IRER(E
ABARY10,265,3357C c WER-Z
—NFE+-—A+HB%K -

R 4 L 7 R B R 2R ) 0 31 3 75 K
RERBOCEMNEENTFRIE
NIRIGEFAELNHRIME - BHA
AEBNRBERPREATERSE - B
HImE AR A o

the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group's assets
and liabilities on 10 December 2019, the completion date of

the acquisition:

Property, plant and equipment (note 10)
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Current tax

Amount due to the Group

Total identifiable net assets

Goodwill

Non-controlling interests arising from
acquisition of the subsidiary

Total consideration

An analysis of net cash outflow in respect of
the acquisition is as follows:

Cash consideration paid

Amount due to the Group

Less: consideration payables

Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired

Net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

WBEEEHAEER _F-NF+=
ATB(ZEXREBEREH)NEERAE

BUTRE
$'000
Fx
YE - BB KEE(MEE10) 1,211
FE 74,910
B 5 R HAb WA 99,559
ReMREeEEIER 92,941
B 5 RHEAMERFIE (32,021)
HEaE (1,139)
BNHEATR 18 (932)
JES AR B FRIE (227,731)
AR FEERE 6,798
EES 4,729
U BEKT B A RIELER

JEERR HE (68)
BRAE 11,459

WHESETERIRE R FEE

DT ¢

BRERE 11,459
e AR B FUR 227,731
o ERRE (3,363)
B BWERe MRS EER (92,941)
WS BRI SR 142,886
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26

27

190

HAFAERIN)

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Revenue and profit contribution

The revenue and profit after taxation of $162,790,000 and
$1,680,000 respectively included in the consolidated income
statement were contributed by SHDY from the date of the
acquisition to 31 December 2019.

If the acquisition of SHDY had occurred on 1 January 2019, the
Group's revenue and loss after tax of the continuing operation
for the year would have been approximately $3,147,110,000
and $126,495,000 respectively. These amounts have been
calculated by adopting the Group’s accounting policies.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

26

27
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27

—NEFH ER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry and country in which customers operate
and therefore significant concentration of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as 63%
(2018: 26%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's five largest customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 1 month past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience indicates significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is distinguished
between the Group's different customer bases and
separate the customer bases by operation segments.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)

27 BEREEREBMIAEQNAREE)

(a) =FERRGE)

Cash and cash equivalents

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group limits
its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with financial
institutions that meet the established credit rating or other
criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 77% of total cash and
equivalents were deposited with a financial institution in
Hong Kong (2018: 94% of total cash and cash equivalents
were deposited with a financial institution in the PRC).

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

RERRELEEER
HIREMREFEERR - AKE
BB ERERRTAREREE
PR EMARE SRS - R
BEMAZ ZEERR - ENME
Bilhm  WEBRERHRTEE
ERGEFEAZHERE - N
Z-NEF+ZRA=+—H %%
EmR e MREeFERBAEN
T7%F N — KR BB B
BE(—E-N\F BH2RkBe
E{E1E B B4 %F MR —K
IR B S REE) - i
X-ERENEESTAR

TEHFANARE EHAR
BB SRR S R A
ZER

Gross

Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

FEHET IR R AR E EERE

% $'000 $'000

Tt Tt

Neither past due nor impaired 37 38 B sk J5i(E - 91,459 -

Less than one month past due #EIDHR—{EA - 1,124 -

1 to 2 months past due wHE—Z=/MIE A - 34 -
Over 2 months and less than 3 EAFE:E & A

5 months past due BAREEA - 2,896 -

95,513 -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 BIXEREEREMIAQAAREBEE)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERREE)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Expected

loss rate
TEHAEE R
%

Neither past due nor impaired 3 #%3 i sk (& -
Less than one month past due 1 Hi A —1{& A -

1 to 2 months past due B B — = R {E A -
Over 2 months and less than %1 278 38 /i A

5 months past due BLRAMEA -
Over 5 months past due 180 AR 38 {8 A 100%

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past two years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is disclosed in note 16(b).

—E-NEFHR EBREFRERAE

RERREFEER(A)

Gross
carrying Loss
amount allowance
RERE(E EstE R
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
17,491 -
470 -
8 —
288 -
38,927 38,927
57,184 38,927

EHBRXRBEMFENERE

BERETE - WFH R SRR

R(EEIED EHRRE) B

ARER - B AR R A B

JRE WK IR TR B 17 A B VAR
BR - MAATE -

FREBE S ERIRRAE R
HIRPRE N E16(0)HE -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 BBEREERESMIAAABEGE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) BEHRBHERB
Individual operating entities within the Group are ZK%IE‘ETZMEIJ BEERES
responsible for their own cash management, including the BTEBES 2 EI  BHEBR

short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BRMRERRRE REREERA

FERTERIR S F K - HMEER
/ iESEngE:Z++%:FEﬁ§ﬂ<EFE¢ '
ARSAAREFE 280 o K
%lZﬁ R/ BRI R R T8
B2 MENETR SR - AR E 45
TR eRHEREE T ES R
BRANAHEEERE - NER
H 52 Hp &rﬁ,ﬁﬁ/mﬁ MK -

TRINMAEEZ FOTERRE
1;75’\\,% BZ# T A KMRF
18 ERERAOARTRATR
(\L?HE%F%’]TEZTU Sk
FRREFREREER  SHEZ
%lJmS'ZtH)&ZISE@Eji%%%%%
Rz BHETE -

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ARABRRERE SRABRRERE
More than  More than Carrying lore than~ More than Camjing
Within Tyear  2years amount at Within 1 year 2years amount at
fyearor butwithin butwithin More than 31 lyeror  butwithn  butwithin  More than 31
ondemand  2years  Syears  Syears Total  December on demand 2years 5 years 5 years December
-Fhg  BE-F BERE
NEAE  fERERN  BRER  BBEF #ane
§1000 §1000 §1000 ) )
n n T
Bank loans ity %442 105927 32915 3667 911955 702499 131573 154972 583155 142481 1,012,187 879934
leaselicbites (Note)  BERE(HE) 548 271 3 SRR X7 B A ] - - - - - -
Trade and other payables 5 REf
EfER 128,252 - - - 18252 18250 941,306 - - - W36 941306
Amountsdueto  FERTEERS
related parties i 12,958 167,448 - - 280406 280406 20583 - - - 20585 20583%
303080 276088 373138 336671 1328977 1119289 1218714 154972 583155 142487 2159318 2,027,075
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified MizE : RNEBEER=-FT—hF—A

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. Other lease liabilities include amounts
recognised at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 in respect
of leases previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17 and amounts relating to new leases entered into
during the year. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

— BRBEERT M B A
S IEACE BT RS ER])
F165% - WA YR
R AT RIE(E B g

ERNE17HE DA ALER
EMNHEERENHEESE -

HtHEAERRENRBES
(EAVBHREEL)FE 16
=] EMEHMET%E% 2
FFERNDE17R B AKLE
Tﬁiﬂﬁ’]ﬁfﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁégﬁ
FANR] LA FTE S JBBEE’J%
oo IRIBUL AL - AR
TFES - RHIEE1C) °

]}ﬂ

E&
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 BBEBREEREMIBAAREGE)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIZEmE B
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future MEREAE—ESRTAZ AR
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because BIARRREREHETIHF
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest SR AU T R B TS SR A RS o AR
rate risk arises primarily from bank borrowings. The SEZFERBEZRERITE
Group's bank borrowings at 31 December 2019 were B o AEER -_ZT—hFE+ A
issued at variable rates and therefore expose the Group =+—HZRITEEREHF X
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate R AmMSALEEEEIRER
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) FIZERE M o ANEE 7 FMEH R
below. REREEEEWH TN T XE)

I8 °

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIRER

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\E
Effective Effective

interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERAELE 8 ERAReE KXo}
$'000 $'000

T T

Fixed rate borrowings: EEMEE

Lease liabilities (Note) HEaB(HE) 2.4% 8,132 - -
Net variable rate BERERE:
borrowings:
Bank loans RITEX 6.8% 702,498 4.61%-4.9% 879,934
Total borrowings BEBE 710,630 879,934
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the MieE « AREEEEETBBE
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the IR FEFRCE BB 53R
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise EAERDE 1655 L FHE
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously RZZE-hF—H—H
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Under HIF VLR - ARERRSE
this approach, the comparative information is not BIRIBCE BG4
restated. See note 1(c). FNT RO ERKENEE

WHEREEERE -
RFULTE  LLERER
AFE © RHEE1Q -

ZE-NFFHR EERERERAT 195
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HAFAERIN)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points (2018: 100
basis points) in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's
profit for the year and decrease/increase the Group's
retained profits by approximately $7,025,000 (2018:
increase/decrease the Group’s loss for the year and
increase/decrease the Group’s accumulated losses by
approximately $8,799,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2018.

(d) Currency risk

0}

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through billings of (i) storage and warehousing
income and (ii) port and transshipment income
that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they
relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
United States dollars (“USD").

As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD") is pegged to the
UsSD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant.

27

HERBEEREMTIAAAREE)

(0 FEEB(E)
(i) SBREDH

R—ZZ—-—NAF+=A
=+—H EFEHMA
BHRAZEHRTENEBER
T EETERESP EH S
TRE100E F (== —N
F 1008 F) - K5 RIRE
L EMAEEZ F R
FESHAL A E®RZ
REB & F%77,025,0007T( =
T— )\ g m AR
EEZFREBREM
BAOREEZ RETEELD
8,799,0007T) °

LA EHBURE 2 TR
EEHEREEREEM
EE - WEEARMRZ
BFRIEEREFTESR
THZHM=@EE - 10081
EmMsR L EEREEYE
ET—RFEHEEAHE
ZHRIRO AR EF 2T
feZzotheE=_Z—N
FRRC EAE#TT

(d) EWER

0}

IER S
AEEEZRNOITFLE
JEB WA BA R (i) 7 O R 8 )
WAZEREEHZER
BEBZNEEEAME
EMAXREEERER - &
RRBERRZEREEN
E(E D

MR (L)) BET
4 MAEER BB
EELHEZRDHE
BETEA -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and deposits held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with
the Group’s borrowings.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposures are
expressed in HKD, translated using the spot rate at
the balance sheet date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation 